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Item 1. Financial Statements

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND

SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In $000s, Except Unit Amounts)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Inventories, net

Trade, notes and other receivables, net

Other current assets

Assets of discontinued operations held for sale
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net:

Real Estate

Home Fashion

Total property, plant and equipment, net
Investments

Intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Securities sold not yet purchased

Current liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Other noncurrent liabilities
Preferred limited partnership units:

$10 liquidation preference, 5% cumulative pay-in-kind; 12,100,000
authorized; 11,907,073 and 11,340,243 issued and outstanding as of June 30,

2007 and

December 31, 2006, respectively
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In $000s, Except Unit Amounts)

June 30,
2007

(Unaudited)

$3,134,713
309,473
267,330
150,143
41,255
627,988
4,530,902

265,603
192,560
458,163
177,496
23,402
30,709
$5,220,672

$76,022
148,742
23,111
6,806
315,888
570,569
2,017,677
15,047

120,561

2,153,285
2,723,854

December
31,
2006

$1,857,323
535,657
245,502
169,744
114,826
599,956
3,523,008

283,974
200,382
484,356
179,932
23,402
34,049
$4,244,747

$61,327
152,051
23,474
25,398
318,085
580,335
927,661
16,219

117,656

1,061,536
1,641,871
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Minority interests 182,729 292,221
Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)

Partners equity:

Limited partners:

Depositary units: 72,400,000 authorized; 62,994,031 issued and 61,856,831

outstanding as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 2,527,982 2,524,615

General partner (201,972 ) (202,039 )
Treasury units at cost: 1,137,200 depositary units (11,921 ) (11,921 )
Partners equity 2,314,089 2,310,655
Total liabilities and partners equity $5,220,672 $4,244,747

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(In 000s, Except Per Unit Amounts)

Three Months Ended June
30,
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Revenues:
Home fashion $165,789  $237,148
Real estate 25,583 48,269
191,372 285,417
Expenses:
Home fashion 218,792 285,487
Real estate 24,580 33,977
General and administrative expenses 3,860 3,836
247,232 323,300
Operating loss (55,860 ) (37,883 )
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (35,499 ) (21,056 )
Interest income 41,235 11,958
Other income (expense), net (16,705 ) 44,840
Equity in earnings of affiliate 7,996

(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority (66,829 ) 5,855

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006(In 0008, Excef
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interests

Income tax expense (1,155 ) (13 )
Minority interests 20,594 25,703
(Loss) income from continuing operations 47,390 ) 31,545
Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 20,989 46,129
Minority interests 41 125
Gain on sales of assets, net of income taxes 841 1,308
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 21,871 47,562
Net (loss) earnings $(25,519 ) $79,107
Net (loss) earnings attributable to:

Limited partners $(25,011 ) $77,533
General partner (508 ) 1,574

$(25,519 ) $79,107
Net (loss) earnings per LP unit:
Basic earnings:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.75 ) $0.53
Income from discontinued operations 0.35 0.75
Basic (loss) earnings per LP unit $040 ) $1.28
Weighted average LP units outstanding: 61,857 61,857
Diluted (loss) earnings:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.75 ) $0.51
Income from discontinued operations 0.35 0.72
Diluted (loss) earnings per LP unit $0.40 ) $1.23
Weighted average LP units and equivalent partnership units outstanding 61,857 64,535

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(In 000s, Except Per Unit Amounts)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006
(Unaudited)

Revenues:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006(In 000s, &xcept F
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Home fashion $ 376,393 $ 480,638
Real estate 53,261 68,799
429,654 549,437
Expenses:
Home fashion 468,410 566,935
Real estate 48,049 51,089
General and administrative expenses 11,539 14,980
527,998 633,004
Operating loss (98,344 ) (83,567 )
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (63,040 ) (41,529 )
Interest income 72,273 22,662
Other income (expense), net 68,077 66,151
Equity in earnings of affiliate 8,021
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and minority (21,034 ) (28262 )
interests
Income tax (expense) benefit (1,891 ) 40
Minority interests 32,185 40,772
Income from continuing operations 9,260 12,550
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 49,527 114,553
Minority interests (1,753 ) 179
Gain on sales of assets, net of income taxes 14,026 1,559
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 61,800 116,291
Net earnings $ 71,060 $ 128,841
Net earnings attributable to:
Limited partners $ 69,646 $ 126,277
General partner 1,414 2,564

$ 71,060 $ 128,841
Net earnings per LP unit:
Basic earnings:

Income from continuing operations $0.15 $0.22
Income from discontinued operations 0.98 1.84
Basic earnings per LP unit $1.13 $ 2.06
Weighted average LP units outstanding: 61,857 61,857
Diluted earnings:

Income from continuing operations $0.15 $0.22
Income from discontinued operations 0.98 1.84
Diluted earnings per LP unit $1.13 $ 2.06
Weighted average LP units and equivalent partnership units outstanding 61,857 61,857

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006(In 000s, Except F
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AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PARTNERS EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
(Unaudited) (In $000s)

Limited Held in Treasury
General
Partners Total
Partner s Equit Partners
Equity quity Amounts  Units .
. Depositary Equity
(Deficit) .
Units
Balance, December 31, 2006 $(202,039 ) $2,524,615 $(11,921) 1,137  $2,310,655
Cumulative effect of adjustment
from adoption (840 ) (41,344 ) 42,184 )
of SFAS No. 159
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 1,414 69,646 71,060
Net unrealized losses on
securities available for sale (0 ) (4414 ) (4,504 )
Comprehensive income 1,324 65,232 66,556
Partnership distributions (314 ) (15,464 ) (15,778 )
Change in subsidiary equity (102 ) (5,037 ) (5,139 )
Other (1 ) (20 ) (21 )
Balance, June 30, 2007 $(201,972 ) $2,527,982  $(11,921) 1,137 $2,314,089

Accumulated other comprehensive income at June 30, 2007 was $20.9 million.

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006(Unaudite?l) (In $C
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(Unaudited) (In $000s)

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2007 2006
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net earnings $71,060 $128,841
Income from discontinued operations (61,800) (116,291)
Income from Continuing Operations 9,260 12,550
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 15,270 23,216
Investment gains 562’094 (62,661 )
Preferred LP unit interest expense 2,906 2,753
Minority interests 532’185 40,772)
Equity in earnings of affiliate (8,021)
Stock based compensation expense 6,248
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 1,025 (530)
Impairment loss on fixed assets 17,653 26,726
Net cash used in activities on trading securities (5,202) (26,750)
Other, net 7,942 (823)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade notes and other receivables 11,966 31,868
Decrease in other assets 1,461 32,541
Increase in inventory 521’828 41,477)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,706 (2,218)
Net cash used in continuing operations 547’120 47,350)
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:
Income from discontinued operations 61,800 116,291
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 8,398 69,236
Change in fair market value of oil and gas derivative contracts (57,611)
Other, net 515’632 17,753
Net cash provided by discontinued operations 54,566 145,669
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,446 98,319
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash Flows from Continuing Operations:

. . (23,109

Capital expenditures ) (10,082 )
Purchases of marketable equity and debt securities 574’412 §161’849
Proceeds from sales of marketable equity and debt securities 326,786 162,701
Net proceeds from sales and disposition of assets 15,023 11,751
Acquisitions of business, net of cash acquired (59,752)
Other (265)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities continuing operations. 244,288 (57,496)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006(Unauditedl) (In $C
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See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(Unaudited) (In $000s)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2007 2006
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:
Capital expenditures $(15,238) $§121’302
Net proceeds from the sales of fixed assets 4,359 8,376
Purchase of minority interest of investment in subsidiary (47,283)
Release of escrow funds relating to asset sales 50,000
L . . (109,897
Acquisitions of business, net of cash acquired )
Other 8,172 (662)
. S . . . . . (223,485
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities discontinued operations 10 )
Net cash provided by (used in) in investing activities 244,298 5280’981
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Cash Flows from Continuing Operations:
Partners equity:
Partnership distributions (15,778 ) (12,623 )
Dividend paid to minority holders of subsidiary (18,529 )
Debt:
Proceeds from senior notes payable 492,130
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes 600,000
Proceeds from mortgages payable 34,250
Repayment of credit facilities (1,765 )
Periodic principal payments 2,571 ) (451 )
Debt issuance costs 275 ) (2,020 )
Other (15 )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and @006(Un
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Net cash provided by financing activities continuing operations 1,054,977 17,376
Cash Flows Continuing Operations:
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities discontinued operations (245 ) 52,841

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1,054,732 70,217
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,306,476 (112,445)
Net change in cash of assets held for sale (29,086 ) 76,765
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,857,323 351,775
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $3,134,713 $316,095
Supplemental information

Cash payments for interest $61,894 $50,547
Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds $14,427 $8,389

Net unrealized (losses) gains on securities available for sale $(4,504 ) $8,634

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
June 30, 2007

Note 1 General

American Real Estate Partners, L.P., or the Company or AREP, is a master limited partnership formed in Delaware on
February 17, 1987. We are a diversified holding company owning subsidiaries engaged in the following continuing
operating businesses: Real Estate and Home Fashion. Further information regarding our reportable segments is
contained in Note 17.

As discussed in Note 3, in November 2006, we divested our Oil and Gas business and our Atlantic City gaming
properties. On April 22, 2007, we entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership
interests of American Casino and Entertainment Properties LLC, or ACEP, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary,

which comprises all of our remaining gaming properties. Accordingly, in the second quarter of the fiscal year ending

December 31, 2007, or fiscal 2007, the financial position and the results of ACEP s operations are presented as assets

and liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets and discontinued operations
in the consolidated statements of operations for all periods in accordance with SFAS No. 144.

We own a 99% limited partnership interest in American Real Estate Holdings Limited Partnership, or AREH. AREH,

the operating partnership, holds our investments and conducts our business operations. Substantially all of our assets
and liabilities are owned by AREH and substantially all of our operations are conducted through AREH and its

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S
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subsidiaries. American Property Investors, Inc., or API, owns a 1% general partnership interest in both us and AREH,
representing an aggregate 1.99% general partnership interest in us and AREH. API is owned and controlled by Mr.
Carl C. Icahn.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006, or fiscal 2006. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, related to interim financial statements. The
financial information contained herein is unaudited; however, management believes all adjustments have been made

that are necessary to present fairly the results for the interim periods. All such adjustments are of a normal and
recurring nature, except for the adoption of SFAS No. 159, as described below.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority owned
subsidiaries in which control can be exercised. The Company is considered to have control if it has a direct or indirect
ability to make decisions about an entity s activities through voting or similar rights. All material intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Because of the diversified and seasonal nature of our business, the results of operations for quarterly and other interim
periods are not indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. Variations in the amount and timing of gains
and losses on our investments can be significant. The results of our Real Estate and Home Fashion segments are
seasonal.

Discontinued Operations

On November 17, 2006, our indirect majority owned subsidiary, Atlantic Coast Entertainment Holdings, Inc., or
Atlantic Coast, completed the sale to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., or Pinnacle, of the outstanding membership
interests in ACE Gaming LLC, or ACE, the owner of The Sands Hotel and Casino, or The Sands, in Atlantic City,
New Jersey, and 100% of the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of AREH that owned parcels of real estate
adjacent to The Sands, including the Traymore site, to Pinnacle.

On November 21, 2006, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, AREP O & G Holdings LLC, consummated the sale of
all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of NEG Oil & Gas LLC, or NEG Oil & Gas, to SandRidge
Energy, Inc. or SandRidge, formerly Riata Energy, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENT

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
June 30, 2007

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S
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Note 1 General (continued)

On April 22, 2007, American Entertainment Properties Corp, or AEP, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of AREP,
entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of ACEP, which comprises
our remaining gaming operations.

Operating properties of our real estate segment are reclassified to held for sale when subject to a contract or letter of
intent. The operations of such properties are classified as discontinued operations. The properties classified as
discontinued operations have changed during fiscal 2007 and, accordingly, certain amounts in the statement of
operations and cash flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 have been reclassified to

conform to the current classification of properties. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, five properties were

reclassified to held for sale.

The financial position and results of these operations are presented as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations
held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets and discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Filing Status of Subsidiaries

National Energy Group, Inc., or NEGI, and Atlantic Coast are reporting companies under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, or the 34 Act. In addition, ACEP voluntarily files annual, quarterly and current reports under the
34 Act.

Sales of Subsidiary Stock

SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51, Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary ( SAB 51 ), provides guidance on
accounting for the effect of issuances of a subsidiary s stock on the parent s investment in that subsidiary. SAB 51

allows registrants to elect an accounting policy of recording such increases or decreases in a parent s investment (SAB
51 credits or charges, respectively) as either a gain or loss in the statement of operations or reflected as an equity
transaction. In accordance with the election provided in SAB 51, we adopted a policy of recording such SAB 51

credits or charges directly to partners equity. As further discussed in Note 11, during the second quarter of fiscal 2007

we recognized certain SAB 51 charges to partners equity of approximately $6.1 million related to our investment in
Atlantic Coast under our adopted policy.

New Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 155. On February 16, 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid
Instruments an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140 ( SFAS 155 ). The statement amends Statement 133
to permit fair value measurement for certain hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative,
provides additional guidance on the applicability of SFAS 133 and 140 to certain financial instruments and
subordinated concentrations of credit risk. The new standard is effective for the first fiscal year beginning after
September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS 155 as of January 1, 2007 did not have any impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

EITF 06-3. In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) issued EITF 06-3, How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross
versus Net Presentation) to clarify diversity in practice on the presentation of different types of taxes in the financial

statements. The EITF concluded that, for taxes within the scope of the issue, a company may adopt a policy of
presenting taxes either gross within revenue or net. That is, it may include charges to customers for taxes within

Note 1 General (continued) 13
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revenues and the charge for the taxes from the taxing authority within cost of sales, or, alternatively, it may net the
charge to the customer and the charge from the taxing authority. If taxes are reported on a gross basis, and are
significant, an entity should disclose the amounts of those taxes subject to EITF 06-3. The guidance is effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2006. We present sales tax on a net basis in our consolidated financial
statements, and the adoption of EITF 06-3 did not have any impact on our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

TABLE OF CONTENT

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
June 30, 2007

Note 1 General (continued)

FIN No. 48. In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes an Interpretation of FASB Statement 109 (' FIN 48 ), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and
measurement. FIN 48 provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can be recognized in the financial
statements only if the position is more-likely-than-not to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by a taxing
authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position, without regard to
the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged. If an uncertain tax position meets the more-likely-than-not
threshold, the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be recognized upon ultimate
settlement with the taxing authority is recorded. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to
opening retained earnings. We adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. See note 18 for additional information.

SFAS No. 157. In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS
157 ), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and, accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new
fair value measurements. We adopted SFAS 157 as of January 1, 2007, in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No.
159, as required. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have any impact on our consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 159. In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 ( SFAS 159 ), which gives entities the
option to measure eligible financial assets, financial liabilities and firm commitments at fair value (i.e., the fair value
option), on an instrument-by-instrument basis, that are otherwise not permitted to be accounted for at fair value under
other accounting standards. The election to use the fair value option is available when an entity first recognizes a

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL S



Edgar Filing: AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS L P - Form 10-Q

financial asset or financial liability or upon entering into a firm commitment. Subsequent changes in fair value must
be recorded in earnings. Additionally, SFAS 159 allows for a one-time election for existing positions upon adoption,
with the transition adjustment recorded to beginning partners equity.

We adopted SFAS 159 as of January 1, 2007 and elected to apply the fair value option to our investment in ImClone
Systems Incorporated, or ImClone. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we first applied the equity method of
accounting to our investment in ImClone due to changes in ImClone s board resulting in our having the ability to
exercise significant influence over ImClone. We believe that the quality of the earnings and the value of the
investment that we report over time relating to our investment in ImClone are more accurately reflected by the market
value methodology of SFAS 159 rather than the equity method of accounting. The equity method of accounting would
require an appraisal of the fair values of ImClone s assets and liabilities at the dates that we acquired shares of
common stock of ImClone as well as future appraisals should there be any material indications of impairment. We
believe that such an appraisal would be subjective given the nature of ImClone s pharmaceutical operations.

As of the date of adoption, the carrying value of our investment in ImClone was approximately $164.3 million and the
fair value of our investment was approximately $122.2 million. In accordance with the transition requirements of

SFAS 159, we recorded a cumulative effect adjustment to beginning partners equity for the difference between the fair
value and carrying value on the date of adoption, which reduced partners equity by approximately $42.2 million.

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 159, we are required to record unrealized gains or losses for the change in fair
value of our investment in ImClone. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, we

TABLE OF CONTENT

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND
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Note 1 General (continued)

recorded approximately $24.7 million of unrealized losses and $39.2 million of unrealized gains, respectively,
resulting from the change in the market value of ImClone s stock which is recorded as a component of other income
(expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements of prior years have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.
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Note 2 Operating Units

Through the second quarter of fiscal 2006, we had four principal operating businesses: Oil and Gas, Gaming, Real
Estate and Home Fashion. As described in Note 3, in November 2006 we divested our Oil and Gas businesses and our
Atlantic City Gaming properties. Additionally, as described in Note 3, on April 22, 2007, AEP, a wholly owned
indirect subsidiary of AREP, entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership interests
of ACEP, which comprises our remaining gaming operations. As a result, our Oil and Gas operations and all of our
Gaming properties are now classified as discontinued operations and thus are not considered reportable segments of
our continuing operations. We now have two principal operating businesses: Real Estate and Home Fashion.

a. Real Estate

Our real estate operations consist of three segments: rental real estate, property development and associated resort
activities.

A summary of real estate property and equipment as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 included in the
consolidated balance sheets is as follows (in $000s):

June 30, December
2007 31, 2006
(Unaudited)
Rental properties:
Finance leases, net $ 63,960 $ 66,335
Operating leases 41,132 46,170
Property development 117,040 126,537
Resort properties 43,471 44,932
Total real estate $ 265,603 $ 283,974

10
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Summarized unaudited statements of operations attributable to our continuing real estate operations for the periods
indicated are as follows (in $000s):
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues:
Rental real estate:
Interest income on financing leases $ 1,527 $ 1,715 $ 3,105 $ 3,451
Rental income 1,862 1,750 3,757 3,217
Property development 14,735 37,852 32,881 49,236
Resort activities 7,459 6,952 13,518 12,895
Total revenues 25,583 48,269 53,261 68,799
Operating expenses:
Rental real estate 1,444 822 2,908 1,788
Property development 15,073 25,976 30,685 35,952
Resort activities 8,063 7,179 14,456 13,349
Total expenses 24,580 33,977 48,049 51,089
Operating income $ 1,003 $ 14,292 $ 5,212 $ 17,710

Rental Real Estate

As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we owned 36 and 37 rental real estate properties, respectively. These
primarily consist of fee and leasehold interests in real estate in 18 states. Most of these properties are net-leased to
single corporate tenants. Approximately 86% of these properties are currently net-leased, 3% are operating properties
and 11% are vacant.

Property Held for Sale

The following is a summary of property held for sale for the periods indicated (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Leased to others $ 36,219 $ 28,015
Vacant 703 703
36,922 28,718
Less: accumulated depreciation (8,735 ) (5,053 )
Total $ 28,187 $ 23,665

As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, $19.8 million of real estate held for sale was pledged to collateralize the
payment of non-recourse mortgages payable.

We market portions of our commercial real estate portfolio for sale. Unaudited sales activity for the periods indicated
was as follows (in $000s, except unit data):

11
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Note 2 Operating Units (continued)

Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Properties sold 4 1 8
Proceeds received $ $ 7,354 $ 4,359 $ 8,327
Total gain recorded $ $ 1,308 $ 3,862 $ 1,559
Gain recorded in discontinued operations $ $ 1,308 $ 3,862 $ 1,559

Property Development and Associated Resort Activities

We own, primarily through our Bayswater subsidiary, residential development properties. Bayswater is a real estate
investment, management and development company that focus primarily on the construction and sale of single-family
houses, multi-family homes and lots in subdivisions and planned communities and raw land for residential
development. Our New Seabury development property in Cape Cod, Massachusetts and our Grand Harbor and Oak
Harbor development property in Vero Beach, Florida each include land for future residential development of
approximately 400 and 1,000 units of residential housing, respectively. Both developments operate golf and resort
activities as well. We are also developing residential communities in Naples, Florida and Westchester County, New
York.

Unaudited property development sales activity for the periods indicated was as follows (in $000s, except unit data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Units sold:
New Seabury, Massachusetts 5 20 11 30
Grand Harbor/Oak Harbor, Florida 6 6 11 8
Falling Waters, Florida 6 9 29 9
Westchester, New York 2 6 4 6
Tampa Bay, Florida 1

19 41 56 53

Revenues:
New Seabury, Massachusetts $ 5,334 $ 21,352 $ 8,917 $ 30,385
Grand Harbor/Oak Harbor, Florida 4,944 4,123 9,293 6,444
Falling Waters, Florida 1,660 2,261 7,127 2,261
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Westchester, New York 2,797 10,116 6,040 10,146
Tampa Bay, Florida 1,504
$ 14,735 $ 37,852 $ 32,881 $ 49,236
For the second quarter of fiscal 2007, the property development operating unit recorded an asset impairment charge of
approximately $1.8 million related to certain condominium land in our Oak Harbor, Florida subdivision. There were
no impairment charges in fiscal 2006.

b. Home Fashion

We conduct our Home Fashion operations through our majority ownership in West Point International Inc., or WPI, a
manufacturer and distributor of home fashion consumer products.

Summary balance sheets for Home Fashion as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, as included in the
consolidated balance sheets are as follows (in $000s):

12
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June 30, 13)16 cember

2007 2006

(Unaudited)
Current assets $511,555 $567,419
Assets held for sale 16,779 23,838
Property plant and equipment, net 192,560 200,382
Intangible and other assets 40,779 38,199
Total assets $761,673 $829,838
Current liabilities $121,563 $101,609
Other liabilities 6,662 8,980
Total liabilities $128,225 $110,589

Unaudited summarized statements of operations for the periods indicated are as follows (in $000s):
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net Sales $165,789 $237,148 $376,393  $ 480,638
Costs of sales 164,114 224,222 370,024 452,582
Gross earnings 1,675 12,926 6,369 28,056
Selling, general and administrative expenses 34,296 40,698 73,693 84,015
Restructuring and impairment charges 20,382 20,567 24,693 30,338
Operating loss $(53,003 ) $(48339) $(92,017) $(86,297 )

Total depreciation for the three months ended June 30, 2007 was $4.6 million, of which $3.5 million was included in
cost of sales and $1.1 million was included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Total depreciation for the
three months ended June 30, 2006 was $9.5 million, of which $7.7 million was included in cost of sales and $1.8
million was included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Total expenses for the three months ended June
30, 2007 include $15.4 million of fixed asset impairment and $5.0 million restructuring charges, of which
approximately $2.5 million relate to severance and $2.5 million relate to continuing costs of closed plants. Total
expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2006 include $18.8 million of fixed asset impairment and $1.7 million
restructuring charges, of which approximately $0.1 million relate to severance and $1.6 million relate to continuing
costs of closed plants.

Total depreciation for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was $9.4 million, of which $7.2 million was included in
cost of sales and $2.2 million was included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Total depreciation for the
six months ended June 30, 2006 was $19.9 million, of which $16.3 million was included in cost of sales and $3.6
million was included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Total expenses for the six months ended June 30,
2007 include $15.4 of fixed asset impairment and $9.3 million restructuring charges of which approximately $3.8
million relates to severance and $5.5 million relates to continuing costs of closed plants. Total expenses for the six
months ended June 30, 2006 include $26.5 million of fixed asset impairment and $3.8 restructuring charges of which
approximately $1.3 million relates to severance and $2.5 million relates to continuing costs of closed plants.

Impairment and restructuring charges for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are included in
Home Fashion operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
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To improve WPI s competitive position, we intend to continue to restructure its operations to significantly reduce its
cost of goods sold by closing certain plants located in the United States, sourcing goods from lower cost overseas
facilities and, potentially, acquiring manufacturing facilities outside of the United States. WPI has incurred
impairment charges to write-down the value of WPI plants taken out of service to their estimated realizable value.

Included in restructuring expenses are cash charges associated with the ongoing costs of closed plants, employee
severance, benefits and related costs. The amount of the accrued liability balance was $1.2 million as of December 31,
2006. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, we incurred additional restructuring costs of $9.3 million, and $9.5

million was paid during this period. As of June 30, 2007, the accrued liability balance was $1.0 million, which is

included in other accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.

Total cumulative impairment and restructuring charges for the period from our acquisition of WPI on August 8, 2005
through June 30, 2007 were $72.0 million.

We expect that restructuring charges will continue to be incurred throughout fiscal 2007. As of June 30, 2007, WPI
expects to incur additional restructuring costs over the next twelve months relating to the current restructuring plan in
the range of $10.0 million and $17.5 million.

Ongoing litigation may result in our ownership of WPI being reduced to less than 50% as described in Part I, Item 3 of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 filed with the SEC on March 6, 2007.

Note 3 Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale

The Sands and Related Assets

On November 17, 2006, Atlantic Coast, ACE, AREH, and certain other entities owned by or affiliated with AREH
completed the sale to Pinnacle of the outstanding membership interests in ACE and 100% of the equity interests in
certain subsidiaries of AREH that own parcels of real estate adjacent to The Sands, including 7.7 acres known as the
Traymore site. We owned, through subsidiaries, approximately 67.6% of Atlantic Coast, which owned 100% of ACE.
The aggregate price was approximately $274.8 million, of which approximately $200.6 million was paid to Atlantic
Coast and approximately $74.2 million was paid to affiliates of AREH for subsidiaries that owned the Traymore site
and the adjacent properties. Under the terms of the agreement, $51.8 million of the purchase price paid to Atlantic
Coast was deposited into escrow to fund indemnification obligations with regard to the claims of creditors and
stockholders of GB Holdings, Inc., or GB Holdings. On February 22, 2007 we resolved all outstanding litigation
involving our interest in our Atlantic City gaming operations resulting in a release of all claims against us. As a result
of the settlement, our ownership of Atlantic Coast increased from 67.6% to 96.9% and $50.0 million of the amount
placed into escrow was released to us.

Oil and Gas Operations

On November 21, 2006, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, AREP O & G Holdings, LLC, consummated the sale
of all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of NEG Oil & Gas to SandRidge, for consideration
consisting of $1.025 billion in cash, 12,842,000 shares of SandRidge s common stock valued, at the date of closing, at
$18 per share, and the repayment by SandRidge of $300.0 million of debt of NEG Oil & Gas. On April 4, 2007, we
sold our entire position in SandRidge for cash consideration of approximately $243.2 million.

On November 21, 2006, pursuant to an agreement dated October 25, 2006 among AREH, NEG Oil & Gas and
National Energy Group, Inc., or NEGI, NEGI sold its membership interest in NEG Holding LL.C to NEG Oil & Gas
for consideration of approximately $261.1 million paid in cash. Of that amount, $149.6 million was used to repay the
principal of and accrued interest with respect to the NEGI 10.75% senior notes due 2007, all of which were held by
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us.
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American Casino & Entertainment Properties LLC

On April 22, 2007, AEP, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of AREP, entered into a Membership Interest Purchase
Agreement with W2007/ACEP Holdings, LLC, an affiliate of Whitehall Street Real Estate Funds, a series of real
estate investment funds affiliated with Goldman, Sachs & Co., to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership
interests of ACEP, which comprises all of our remaining gaming operations, for $1.3 billion, plus or minus certain

adjustments such as working capital, more fully described in the agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,

AEP is required to cause ACEP to repay from funds provided by AEP, the principal, interest, prepayment penalty or
premium due on ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 and ACEP s senior secured credit facility. With this
transaction, we anticipate realizing a gain of approximately $0.57 billion on our investments in ACEP, after income

taxes. ACEP s casino assets are comprised of the Stratosphere Casino Hotel & Tower, the Arizona Charlie s Decatur,

the Arizona Charlie s Boulder and the Aquarius Casino Resort. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Nevada
Gaming Commission and the Nevada State Gaming Control Board, as well as customary conditions. The parties
expect to close the transaction by the end of fiscal 2007; however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
consummate the transaction.

Real Estate

Operating properties are reclassified to held for sale when subject to a contract or letter of intent. The operations of
such properties are classified as discontinued operations. The properties classified as discontinued operations have
changed during fiscal 2007 and, accordingly, certain amounts in the statement of operations and cash flows for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 have been reclassified to conform to the current classification of
properties. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, five properties were reclassified to held for sale.

Results of Operations and Assets Held for Sale

The financial position and results of our Oil and Gas and Real Estate operations and of our Gaming operations
described above are presented as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale in the consolidated
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balance sheets and discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations, respectively, for all periods
presented in accordance with SFAS No. 144.

A summary of the results of operations for our discontinued operations for the periods indicated are as follows (in
$000s) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues
Oil and Gas $ $ 86,606 $ $ 194,898
Gaming 114,138 134,780 227,026 261,498
Real Estate 1,361 1,849 2,807 3,749
Total revenues $115499 $223,235 $229.833 $ 460,145
Operating income from discontinued operations:
Oil and Gas $ $ 46,528 $ $ 111,516
Gaming 31,319 15,123 54,546 34,478
Real Estate 1,161 1,280 2,315 2,581
Total operating income 32,480 62,931 56,861 148,575
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Interest expense 5,727) (10,838) (11,436) (21,237 )
Interest and other income 273 3,179 19,334 5,067
Income tax expense (6,037) (9,143 ) (15,232) (17,852 )
Income from discontinued operations 20,989 46,129 49,527 114,553
Minority interests 41 125 (1,753 ) 179
Gain on sales of discontinued operations, net of income ’41 1308 14,026 1559

taxes
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$21,871 $47,562  $61,800 $116,291
Interest and other income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 includes approximately $8.3 million
relating to a real estate tax refund received by Atlantic Coast and approximately $10.1 million representing the net
gain on the settlement of litigation relating to GB Holdings.

The gain on sales of discontinued operations in the six months ended June 30, 2007 includes approximately $4.7
million of gain on sales of real estate and $9.3 million relating to the working capital adjustment to the gain recorded
on the sale of our Oil and Gas operations in November 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we ceased
depreciation on the fixed assts of ACEP in the second quarter of fiscal 2007. The amount of the depreciation and
amortization not expensed by us approximated $8.7 million.

A summary of assets held for sale and liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale as of June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 is as follows (in $000):

June 30, 13316 cember

2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83,995 $ 54912
Trade, notes and other receivables 5,594 6,752
Other current assets 20,314 70,950
Property, plant and equipment 429,284 422,715
Other assets 88,801 44,627
Assets held for sale $627,988 $ 599,956
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 52,517 $ 54,267
Long-term debt 257,072 257,825
Other noncurrent liabilities 6,299 5,993
Liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale $ 315,888 $ 318,085

Note 4 Related Party Transactions

a. Administrative Services

In July 2005, we entered into a license agreement with an affiliate for the non-exclusive use of approximately 1,514
square feet of office space for which we pay monthly base rent of $13,000 plus 16.4% of certain additional rent. The
license agreement expires in May 2012. Under the agreement, base rent is subject to increases in July 2008 and
December 2011. Additionally, we are entitled to certain annual rent credits each December beginning December 2005
and continuing through December 2011. For the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid rent of
approximately $27,000 and $32,000 respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid rent of
approximately $67,000 and $85,000, respectively.
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Note 4 Related Party Transactions (continued)

An affiliate occupies a portion of certain office space leased by us. Monthly payments from the affiliate for the use of
the space began on October 12, 2006. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, we received $21,000 and
$40,000, respectively, for the use of such space.

For the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid $152,000 and $197,000, respectively, to XO Holdings,
Inc., formerly known as XO Communications, Inc., an affiliate of our general partner, for telecommunication services.
For the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, these charges were $314,000 and $415,000, respectively.

An affiliate provided certain professional services to WPI for which WPI incurred charges of approximately $222,000
and $81,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $249,000 and $139,000 for the six
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

We provide certain professional services to affiliates for which we charged $174,000 and $147,000 for the three
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $349,000 and $260,000 for the six months ended June 30,

2007 and 2006, respectively. As of June 30, 2007, current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets included
$116,000 to be applied to our charges to the affiliate for services to be provided to it.

b. Securities Ownership

As of June 30, 2007, affiliates of Mr. Icahn owned 10,304,013 preferred units and 55,655,382 depositary units, which
represented approximately 86.5% and 90.0% of the outstanding preferred units and depositary units, respectively.

Note 5 Investments and Related Matters

a. Current Investments

Current investments consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Amortized Carrying Amortized Carrying
Cost Value Cost Value
(Unaudited)
Current Investments:
Trading
Other investments $ $ 5,534 $ $ 20,537
Total current trading 5,534 20,537
Available for Sale
Marketable equity and debt securities 230,949 250,906 242,080 265,411
Other investments 52,129 53,033 247,674 249,709
Total current available for sale 283,078 303,939 489,754 515,120
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Total current investments $ 283,078 $309,473 $489,754 $ 535,657
We use the services of an unaffiliated third-party investment manager to manage certain fixed income investments. As
of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, $177.0 million and $163.7 million, respectively, had been invested at the
discretion of such manager in a diversified portfolio consisting predominantly of short-term investment grade debt
securities. Investments managed by the third-party investment manager are classified as available for sale securities in
the above table.
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b. Noncurrent Investments
Investment in ImClone Systems Incorporated

As described in Note 1 above, we adopted SFAS 159 as of January 1, 2007 and elected to apply the fair value option
to our investment in ImClone at the time of adoption. Previously, we accounted for our investment in ImClone under
the equity method in accordance with APB 18, The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock.
The transition adjustment to beginning partners equity as of January 1, 2007 related to the adoption of SFAS 159 was
a charge of approximately $42.2 million. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, we recorded
approximately $24.7 million of unrealized losses and $39.2 million of unrealized gains, respectively, resulting from
the change in the market value of ImClone s stock.

At June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, our carrying value of our equity investment in ImClone was $161.4 million
based on the fair value method of accounting and $164.3 million based on the equity method of accounting,
respectively. As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the market value of our ImClone shares held was $161.4
million and $122.2 million, respectively, which we believe is not material to our total assets. As of June 30, 2007, the
total shares of ImClone common stock held by us as a percentage of ImClone s total outstanding shares was 5.3%.

ImClone is a registered SEC filer and its consolidated financial statements are readily available at www.sec.gov.

Other Noncurrent Investments
The carrying value of other noncurrent investments was $16.1 million and $15.6 million as of June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively. Included in other securities is an investment of 4.4% of the common stock of Philip

Services Corporation, an entity controlled by related parties. The investment has a cost basis of $0.7 million, which is
net of significant impairment charges taken in prior years.
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Note 6 Inventories, Net

Inventories, net, relate solely to our Home Fashion segment and consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Raw materials and supplies $ 26,908 $ 32,059
Goods in process 74,889 83,592
Finished goods 165,533 129,851

$ 267,330 $ 245,502
Note 7 Trade, Notes and Other Receivables, Net

Trade notes and other receivables, net, consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 N 06 6
(Unaudited)
Trade receivables Home Fashion $ 125,979 $ 134,111
Other 33,665 43,936
Allowance for doubtful accounts Home Fashion (9,501 ) (8,303 )
$ 150,143 $ 169,744
18
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Note 8 Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, December
2007 31,
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2006
(Unaudited)
Restricted cash $ 18,062 $ 87,159
Other 23,193 27,667
Subtotal $ 41,255 $ 114,826

As of December 31, 2006, restricted cash included $50.0 million placed into escrow related to our sale of ACE to
Pinnacle, which was released in February 2007 in connection with the settlement of the litigation relating to GB
Holdings. Additionally, restricted cash consists of balances for escrow deposits and funds held to collateralize letters
of credit.

Note 9 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember

2007 2006

(Unaudited)
Land $ 39,451 $ 56,495
Buildings and improvements 117,379 123,364
Machinery, equipment and furniture 156,051 169,550
Assets leased to others 115,059 123,398
Construction in progress 109,458 88,590

537,398 561,397

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (79,235 ) (77,041 )
Net property, plant and equipment $458,163  $484,356

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment for the three months ended June 30,
2007 and 2006 were $6.0 million and $11.0 million, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense related to
property, plant and equipment for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 were $12.4 million and $22.5 million,
respectively.

Note 10 Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, ]3)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)

Deferred taxes $11,125 $12,764

Deferred finance costs, net of accumulated amortization of $8,046 and 17.396 17.420
$5,256 as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively ’ ’
Other 2,188 3,865
$30,709 $34,049
19
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Note 11  Minority Interests

Minority interests consist of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
WPI $ 145,484 $ 178,843
Atlantic Coast 13,138 70,563
NEGI 24,107 42,815

$ 182,729  $292,221
The minority interest in Atlantic Coast was reduced primarily as a result of the settlement of the litigation relating to
GB Holdings, in February 2007. As a result, our ownership in Atlantic Coast increased from 67.6% to 96.9%. In the
second quarter of fiscal 2007, we and several other investors exercised warrants to purchase shares of common stock
of Atlantic Coast, resulting in an increase of the minority interest in Atlantic Coast, and a decrease in our ownership to
94.2%. Additionally, this resulted in a SAB 51 charge of $6.1 million to partners equity.

On February 15, 2007, NEGI paid a one-time cash dividend to stockholders of record as of the close of business on

February 1, 2007 in the amount of $3.31 per share, or $37.0 million in the aggregate. Of this amount, $18.5 million
was paid to minority holders of NEGI stock.

Note 12 Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Senior unsecured variable rate convertible notes due 2013  AREP $600,000 $
Senior unsecured 7.125% notes due 2013 AREP 972,731 480,000
Senior unsecured 8.125% notes due 2012 AREP 351,408 351,246
Senior secured 7.85% notes due 2012 ACEP 215,000 215,000
Borrowings under credit facility ACEP 40,000 40,000
Mortgages payable 106,718 109,289
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12,003 13,425
Total long-term debt 2,297,860 1,208,960

Less current portion, including debt related to assets held for sale (280,183 ) (281,299 )
$2,017,677 $927,661

Senior Unsecured Variable Rate Convertible Notes Due 2013

Other

In April 2007, we issued an aggregate of $600.0 million of variable rate senior convertible notes due 2013, or the
variable rate notes. The variable rate notes were sold in a private placement pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and issued pursuant to an indenture dated as of April 5, 2007, by and
among us, as issuer, American Real Estate Finance Corp., or AREF, as co-issuer, and Wilmington Trust Company, as
trustee. AREF, our wholly owned subsidiary, was formed solely for the purpose of serving as a co-issuer of our debt

securities in order to facilitate offerings of the debt securities. The variable rate notes bear interest at a rate of three
month LIBOR minus 125 basis points, but no less than 4.0% nor higher than 5.5%, and are convertible into depositary
units of AREP at a conversion price of $132.595 per share, subject to adjustments in certain circumstances. As of June

30, 2007, the interest rate was 4.1%. In the event that we declare a cash dividend or similar cash distribution in any

calendar quarter
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Note 12 Long-Term Debt (continued)

with respect to our depositary units in an amount in excess of $0.10 per depositary unit (as adjusted for splits, reverse
splits, and/or stock dividends), the indenture requires that we simultaneously make such distribution to holders of the
variable rate convertible notes in accordance with a formula set forth in the indenture.

The variable rate convertible notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be
offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements
of the Securities Act. In connection with the sale of the variable rate convertible notes, we and the initial buyers have
entered into a registration rights agreement, pursuant to which we have agreed to file a shelf registration statement on
Form S-3 with respect to resales of depositary units issuable upon conversion of the variable rate convertible notes. A
preliminary registration statement on Form S-3 with respect thereto was filed on June 21, 2007.

Senior Unsecured 7.125% Notes Due 2013

On February 7, 2005, we issued $480.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due
2013, or the 7.125% notes, priced at 100% of principal amount. The 7.125% notes were issued pursuant to an
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indenture dated February 7, 2005 among us, as issuer, AREF as co-issuer, AREH, as guarantor, and Wilmington Trust
Company, as trustee (referred to herein as the 2005 Indenture). Other than AREH, no other subsidiaries guarantee
payment on the notes.

On January 16, 2007, we issued an additional $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% notes, or the
additional 7.125% notes (the 7.125% notes and the additional 7.125% notes being referred to herein as the notes),
priced at 98.4% of par, or at a discount of 1.6%, pursuant to the 2005 Indenture. The notes have a fixed annual interest
rate of 7.125%, which will be paid every six months on February 15 and August 15 and will mature on February 15,
2013. At the time we issued the additional 7.125% notes, we entered into a new registration rights agreement in which
we agreed to permit noteholders to exchange the private notes for new notes which will be registered under the
Securities Act. A preliminary registration statement on Form S-4 with respect thereto was filed on June 21, 2007.

As described below, the indenture governing the 7.125% notes restrict the ability of AREP and AREH, subject to
certain exceptions, to, among other things: incur additional debt; pay dividends or make distributions; repurchase
units; create liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates.

Senior Unsecured 8.125% Notes Due 2012

On May 12, 2004, AREP and AREEF co-issued senior unsecured 8.125% notes due 2012, or the 8.125% notes, in the
aggregate principal amount of $353.0 million. The 8.125% notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated as of
May 12, 2004, among AREP, AREF, AREH, as guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. The 8.125%
notes were priced at 99.266% of principal amount and have a fixed annual interest rate of 8.125%, which will be paid
every six months on June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2004. The 8.125% notes will mature on June
1, 2012. Other than AREH, no other subsidiaries guarantee payment on the notes.

As described below, the indenture governing the 8.125% notes restrict the ability of AREP and AREH, subject to
certain exceptions, to, among other things: incur additional debt; pay dividends or make distributions; repurchase
units; create liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates.

Senior Unsecured Notes Restrictions and Covenants AREP

The indentures governing our senior unsecured 7.125% and 8.125% notes restrict the payment of cash dividends or
distributions, the purchase of equity interests or the purchase, redemption, defeasance or acquisition of debt
subordinated to the senior unsecured notes. The indentures also restrict the incurrence of debt or the issuance of
disqualified stock, as defined, with certain exceptions, provided that we may incur debt or issue disqualified stock if,
immediately after such incurrence or issuance, the ratio of the aggregate principal
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June 30, 2007
Note 12 Long-Term Debt (continued)

amount of all outstanding indebtedness of AREP and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis to the tangible net worth
of AREP and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis would be less than 1.75 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio
was less than 1.75 to 1.0.

The indentures also restrict the creation of liens, mergers, consolidations and sales of substantially all of our assets,
and transactions with affiliates.

The indentures governing our senior unsecured notes require that on each quarterly determination date we and the
guarantor maintain a minimum ratio of cash flow to fixed charges, each as defined, of 1.5 to 1.0, for the four
consecutive fiscal quarters most recently completed prior to such quarterly determination date. For the four fiscal
quarters ended June 30, 2007, the ratio of cash flow to fixed charges was greater than 1.5 to 1.0.

The indentures also require, on each quarterly determination date, that the ratio of total unencumbered assets, as
defined, to the principal amount of unsecured indebtedness, as defined, be greater than 1.5 to 1.0 as of the last day of
the most recently completed fiscal quarter. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was in excess of 1.5 to 1.0. Based on this

ratio, as of June 30, 2007, we and AREH could have incurred up to approximately $1.2 billion of additional
indebtedness.

AREP Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

On August 21, 2006, we and AREF, as the borrowers, and certain of our subsidiaries, as guarantors, entered into a
credit agreement with Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as administrative agent, and certain other lender parties.
Under the credit agreement, we are permitted to borrow up to $150.0 million, including a $50.0 million sublimit that
may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings under the agreement, which are based on our credit rating, bear interest

at LIBOR plus 1.0% to 2.0%. We pay an unused line fee of 0.25% to 0.5%. As of June 30, 2007, there were no
borrowings under the facility.

Obligations under the credit agreement are guaranteed and secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of certain
of our indirect wholly owned holding company subsidiaries. The credit agreement has a term of four years and all
amounts are due and payable on August 21, 2010. The credit agreement includes covenants that, among other things,
restrict the creation of liens and certain dispositions of property by holding company subsidiaries that are guarantors.
Obligations under the credit agreement are immediately due and payable upon the occurrence of certain events of
default.

Senior Secured 7.85% Notes Due 2012 ACEP

The indenture governing ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 restrict the payment of cash dividends or
distributions by ACEP, the purchase of its equity interests, the purchase, redemption, defeasance or acquisition of debt
subordinated to ACEP s notes and investments as restricted payments. The indenture also prohibits the incurrence of
debt or the issuance of disqualified or preferred stock, as defined, by ACEP, with certain exceptions, provided that
ACEP may incur debt or issue disqualified stock if, immediately after such incurrence or issuance, the ratio of
consolidated cash flow to fixed charges (each as defined) for the most recently ended four full fiscal quarters for
which internal financial statements are available immediately preceding the date on which such additional
indebtedness is incurred or disqualified stock or preferred stock is issued would be at least 2.0 to 1.0, determined on a
pro forma basis giving effect to the debt incurrence or issuance. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was in excess of 2.0 to

Note 12 Long-Term Debt  (continued) 32
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1.0. The indenture also restricts the creation of liens, the sale of assets, mergers, consolidations or sales of
substantially all of ACEP s assets, the lease or grant of a license, concession, other agreements to occupy, manage or
use ACEP s assets, the issuance of capital stock of restricted subsidiaries and certain related party transactions. The
indenture governing the ACEP notes allow ACEP and its restricted subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, among other
things, of up to $50.0 million under credit facilities, non-recourse financing of up to $15.0 million to finance the
construction, purchase or lease of personal or real property used in its business, permitted affiliate subordinated
indebtedness (as defined), the issuance of additional 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 in an aggregate principal
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Note 12 Long-Term Debt (continued)

amount not to exceed 2.0 times net cash proceeds received from equity offerings and permitted affiliate subordinated
debt, and additional indebtedness of up to $10.0 million.

ACEP Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

Effective May 11, 2006, ACEP, and certain of ACEP s subsidiaries, as guarantors, entered into an amended and
restated credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank N.A., as syndication agent, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as
administrative agent, and certain other lender parties. As of June 30, 2007, the interest rate on the outstanding
borrowings under the credit facility was 6.82% per annum. The credit agreement amends and restates, and is on
substantially the same terms as, a credit agreement entered into as of January 29, 2004. Under the amended and
restated credit agreement, ACEP will be permitted to borrow up to $60.0 million. Obligations under the credit
agreement are secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of ACEP and its subsidiaries. The credit agreement
has a term of four years and all amounts are due and payable on May 10, 2010. As of June 30, 2007, there were $40.0
million of borrowings under the credit agreement. The borrowings were incurred to finance a portion of the purchase
price of the Aquarius.

The credit agreement includes covenants that, among other things, restrict the incurrence of additional indebtedness by
ACEP and its subsidiaries, the issuance of disqualified or preferred stock, as defined, the creation of liens by ACEP or
its subsidiaries, the sale of assets, mergers, consolidations or sales of substantially all of ACEP s assets, the lease or
grant of a license or concession, other agreements to occupy, manage or use ACEP s assets, the issuance of capital
stock of restricted subsidiaries and certain related party transactions. The credit agreement also requires that, as of the
last date of each fiscal quarter, ACEP s ratio of consolidated first lien debt to consolidated cash flow be not more than
1.0 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was less than 1.0 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, ACEP was in compliance
with each of the covenants.
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The restrictions imposed by ACEP s senior secured notes and the credit facility likely will limit our receiving
payments from the operations of our hotel and gaming properties.

As described in Note 3, on April 22, 2007, AEP entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding
membership interests of ACEP. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, AEP is required to cause ACEP to repay from
funds provided by AEP, the principal, interest, prepayment penalty or premiums due on ACEP s 7.85% senior secured

rates due 2012 and ACEP s senior secured credit facility. Accordingly, pursuant to SFAS 144, these obligations are

now classified as current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Mortgages Payable

Mortgages payable, all of which are non-recourse to us, bear interest at rates between 4.97% and 7.99% and have
maturities between September 1, 2008 and July 1, 2016.

WestPoint Home Secured Revolving Credit Agreement

On June 16, 2006, WestPoint Home, Inc., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of WPI, entered into a $250.0 million
loan and security agreement with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and lender. On September 18, 2006,
The CIT Group/Commercial Services, Inc., General Electric Capital Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC were

added as lenders under this credit agreement. Under the five-year agreement, borrowings are subject to a monthly
borrowing base calculation and include a $75.0 million sub-limit that may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings
under the agreement bear interest, at the election of WestPoint Home, either at the prime rate adjusted by an
applicable margin ranging from minus 0.25% to plus 0.50% or LIBOR adjusted by an applicable margin ranging from
plus 1.25% to 2.00%. WestPoint Home pays an unused line fee of 0.25% to 0.275%. Obligations under the agreement
are secured by WestPoint Home s receivables, inventory and certain machinery and equipment.

The agreement contains covenants including, among others, restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness,
investments, redemption payments, distributions, acquisition of stock, securities or assets of any other
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Note 12 Long-Term Debt (continued)

entity and capital expenditures. However, WestPoint Home is not precluded from effecting any of these transactions if
excess availability, after giving effect to such transaction, meets a minimum threshold.
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As of June 30, 2007, there were no borrowings under the agreement, but there were outstanding letters of credit of
approximately $26.8 million, the majority of which relate to trade obligations.

Note 13 Other Income (Expense)

Unaudited Other Income (Expense), net, is comprised of the following (in $000s):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Net realized gains on sales of marketable $31.119 $22.855 $36206  $56.286

securities

Unrealized (losses) gains on marketable securities (47,883) 4,272 24,243 19,750
Net realized losses on securities sold short 289 ) (27,044) (1,799 ) (32,175 )
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities sold short 263 ) 44,276 3,354 18,800
Gain (losses) on sale of assets 606 ) 27 ) 3,006 27 )
Other 1,217 508 2,977 3,517

$(16,705) $44,840 $68,077  $ 66,151
We recorded approximately $24.7 million of unrealized losses and $39.2 million of unrealized gains for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, resulting from the change in the market price of ImClone s stock.

Note 14 Unit Options

On June 29, 2005, we granted 700,000 nonqualified unit options to our then chief executive officer to purchase up to

700,000 of our depositary units at an exercise price of $35 per unit which would vest over a period of eight years. On

March 14, 2006, our chief executive officer resigned from that position, became a director and Vice Chairman of the

Board of API, and was designated as API s principal executive officer. These changes in status caused the options to
be cancelled in accordance with their terms.

In accordance with SFAS No.123(R), Share Based Payment, the cancellation required that any previously
unrecognized compensation cost be recognized at the date of cancellation and accordingly we recorded a
compensation charge of $6.2 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 related to the previously unrecognized
compensation cost.

Note 15 Preferred Units

Pursuant to the terms of the preferred units, on February 27, 2007 we declared our scheduled annual preferred unit
distribution payable in additional preferred units at the rate of 5% of the liquidation preference per preferred unit of
$10. The distribution was paid on March 31, 2007 to holders of record as of March 15, 2007. A total of 566,830
additional preferred units were issued. As of June 30, 2007, 11,907,073 preferred units were issued and outstanding.
As of June 30, 2007, the number of authorized preferred units was 12,100,000.

Note 16 Earnings Per Limited Partnership Unit

Basic earnings per LP unit are based on earnings attributable to limited partners. Net earnings available for limited
partners are divided by the weighted average number of limited partnership units outstanding.

Note 12 Long-Term Debt  (continued) 35
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Note 16 Earnings Per Limited Partnership Unit (continued)

Diluted earnings per LP unit are based on earnings before the preferred unit distribution and interest on the convertible
notes as the numerator with the denominator based on the weighted average number of limited partnership units and
equivalent limited partnership units outstanding assuming conversion. The preferred units are considered to be
equivalent units.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per LP unit for the periods indicated (in
000s, except per unit data) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Attributable to limited partners:
Basic income (loss) from continuing operations $(46,447) $31,456 $9,076 $13,645
Add preferred unit distribution 1,389
Add convertible notes interest
Income (loss) before discontinued operations (46,447) 32,845 9,076 13,645
Income from discontinued operations 21,436 46,617 60,570 113,976
Diluted (loss) earnings $(25,011) $79,462 $69,646 $127,621
Weighted average LP units outstanding 61,857 61,857 61,857 61,857
Dilutive effect of redemption of preferred LP units 2,679

Weighted average LP units and equivalent partnership
units outstanding
Basic (loss) earnings per LP unit:

61,857 64,535 61,857 61,857

Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.75 ) $0.53 $0.15 $0.22
Income from discontinued operations 0.35 0.75 0.98 1.84
Basic (loss) earnings: $0.40 ) $1.28 $1.13 $2.06
Diluted (loss) earnings per LP unit:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.75 ) $0.51 $0.15 $0.22
Income from discontinued operations 0.35 0.72 0.98 1.84
Diluted (loss) earnings: $0.40 ) $1.23 $1.13 $2.06

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL S
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For purposes of calculating earnings per LP unit, the income relating to our share of ImClone s earnings per share is
based on the earnings per share reported by ImClone for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006.

As their effect would have been anti-dilutive, 5,561,897 and O units for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively, have been excluded from the weighted average LP units and equivalent partnership units
outstanding.

As their effect would have been anti-dilutive, 3,326,940 and 2,761,572 units for the six months ended June 30, 2007
and 2006, respectively, have been excluded from the weighted average LP units and equivalent partnership units
outstanding.

Note 17 Segment Reporting

Through the second quarter of fiscal 2006, we maintained the following six reportable segments: (1) Oil and Gas; (2)
Gaming; (3) Rental Real Estate; (4) Property Development; (5) Resort Activities; and (6) Home Fashion. Our three
real estate related operating and reportable segments are all individually immaterial and have been aggregated for
purposes of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.
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In November 2006, we divested our Oil and Gas and our Atlantic City gaming operating units. Additionally, as
described in Note 3, on April 22, 2007, we entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding
membership interests of ACEP, which comprises the remainder of our gaming operations. As a result, our Oil and Gas
and gaming operations are now classified as discontinued operations and thus are not considered reportable segments
of our continuing operations. We now maintain the four remaining reportable segments.

We assess and measure segment operating results based on segment earnings from operations as disclosed below.
Segment earnings from operations are not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash requirements nor
synonymous with cash flow from operations. As discussed above, the terms of financings for Home Fashion and

Resorts Activities segments impose restrictions on their ability to transfer funds to us, including restrictions on
dividends, distributions, loans and other transactions.

The revenues and net segment operating loss and assets for each of the reportable segments of our continuing
operations are summarized as follows for the periods indicated (in $000s) (unaudited):

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues:
Real Estate:
Rental real estate $3,389 $3,465 $6,862 $6,668
Property development 14,735 37,852 32,881 49,236
Resort operations 7,459 6,952 13,518 12,895
Total Real Estate 25,583 48,269 53,261 68,799
Home Fashion 165,789 237,148 376,393 480,638
Total revenues $191,372 $285,417 $429,654 $549,437
Net segment operating income (loss):
Real Estate:
Rental real estate $1,945 $2,643 $3,954 $4,880
Property development (338 ) 11,876 2,196 13,284
Resort operations 604 ) (227 ) (938 ) (454 )
Total Real Estate 1,003 14,292 5,212 17,710
Home Fashion (53,003) (48,339) (92,017) (86,297 )
Total segment operating loss (52,000) (34,047) (86,805) (68,587 )
Holding Company costs® (3,860 ) (3,836 ) (11,539) (14,980 )
Total operating loss (55,860) (37,883 ) (98,344) (83,567 )
Interest expense (35,499 ) (21,056) (63,040) (41,529 )
Interest income 41,235 11,958 72,273 22,662
Other income (expense), net (16,705 ) 44,840 68,077 66,151
Equity in earnings of affiliate 7,996 8,021
FLoss) Income from‘con‘tinl}ing operations before (66.829)  5.855 (21.034) (28262 )
income taxes and minority interests
Income tax (expense) benefit (1,155 ) (13 ) (1,891 ) 40
Minority interests 20,594 25,703 32,185 40,772
(Loss) income from continuing operations $(47,390) $31,545 $9,260 $12,550

Holding Company costs include AREP s and AREH s general and administrative expenses and acquisition (legal and
(i) professional) costs at the Holding Company level. Selling, general and administrative expenses of the segments are
included in their respective operating expenses in the accompanying statements of operations.
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Note 17 Segment Reporting (continued)

June 30, ]3)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Assets (in $000s):
Real Estate $ 385,097 $382,220
Home Fashion 744,894 806,000
Subtotal 1,129,991 1,188,220
Assets of discontinued operations held for sale 627,988 599,956
Reconciling items(d 3,462,693 2,456,571
Total assets $5,220,672 $4,244,747

(ii) Reconciling items relate principally to cash and investments of AREP and AREH in the Holding Company.

Note 18 Income Taxes

Our corporate subsidiaries recorded the following income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations
of our taxable subsidiaries for the periods indicated as follows (in $000s) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Current $ 422 $ 277 $ 866 $ 490
Deferred 733 264 ) 1,025 (530 )

$ 1,155 $ 13 $ 1,891 $ 4o )

We recorded income tax provisions of $1.89 million and $(0.04) million on pre-tax loss of $21.0 million and $28.3
million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Our effective income tax rate was (9.0)% and
0.14% for the respective periods. We recorded income tax provisions of $1.2 million and $0.01 million on pre-tax loss
of $66.8 million and pre-tax income of $5.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Our effective tax rate was (1.7)% and 0.2% for the respective periods. The difference between the effective tax rate
and the statutory federal rate of 35% is due principally to income or losses from partnership entities in which taxes are
the responsibility of the partners, as well as changes in valuation allowances.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48, on January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement process for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

As of the date of adoption, our unrecognized tax benefits totaled $5.0 million, all of which, if recognized, would affect
the annual effective tax rate. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, there have been no changes to the amount of
unrecognized tax benefits. We believe it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits
could decrease by as much as $3.1 million prior to June 30, 2008 as a result of settlements due to audits and the
expiration of statutes of limitations.

Note 17 Segment Reporting  (continued) 39
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We recognize interest accrued related to uncertain tax positions in interest expense. Penalties are recognized as a
component of income tax expense. The amount of accrued interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions was $1.4
million and $1.1 million as June 30, 2007 and January 1, 2007, respectively. The amount of interest and penalties
accrued during the six months ended June 30, 2007 was approximately $0.3 million.
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Note 18 Income Taxes (continued)

We or certain of our subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state jurisdictions and
various non-U.S. jurisdictions. We are no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and non-U.S. income tax examinations
for fiscal years prior to 2002.

Note 19 Commitments and Contingencies

We are from time to time parties to various legal proceedings arising out of our businesses. We believe however, that
other than the proceedings described in Part I, Item 3 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, filed with
the SEC on March 6, 2007, including that relating to WPI discussed below, there are no proceedings pending or
threatened against us which, if determined adversely, would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity.

WPI Litigation
Federal Proceedings

In November and December 2005, the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York rendered a decision
in Contrarian Funds Inc. v. WestPoint Stevens, Inc. et al., and issued orders reversing certain provisions of the
Bankruptcy Court order, or the Sale Order, pursuant to which we acquired our ownership of a majority of the common
stock of WPI. WPI acquired substantially all of the assets of WestPoint Stevens, Inc. On April 13, 2006, the
Bankruptcy Court entered a remand order, or the Remand Order, which provides, among other things, that all of the
shares of common stock and rights to acquire shares of common stock of WPI issued to us and the other first lien
lenders or held in escrow pursuant to the Sale Order constituted replacement collateral , other than 5,250,000 shares of
common stock that we acquired for cash. The 5,250,000 shares represent approximately 27% of the 19,498,389 shares
of common stock of WPI now outstanding. According to the Remand Order, we would share pro rata with the other
first lien lenders in proceeds realized from the disposition of the replacement collateral and, to the extent there is
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remaining replacement collateral after satisfying first lien lender claims, we would share pro rata with the other second
lien lenders in any further proceeds. We were holders of approximately 39.99% of the outstanding first lien debt and
approximately 51.21% of the outstanding second lien debt. On April 13, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court also entered an
order staying the Remand Order pending appeal. The parties filed cross-appeals of the Remand Order and Contrarian
Funds and certain other first lien lenders, or the Contrarian Group, filed a motion to lift the stay of the Remand Order
pending appeal. Oral argument was held in the District Court on October 19, 2006.

On May 9, 2007, the District Court issued an order conditioning the continuation of the Bankruptcy Court's stay on the
posting of a bond. No bond was posted. On May 22, 2007, WPI, its subsidiary WestPoint Home, Inc., and we filed a
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit requesting, among other relief,
the reinstatement of the Sale Order. The Second Circuit held oral argument on June 26, 2007 and denied the Petition
on June 28, 2007, instructing the District Court to set a new deadline for posting a bond. On July 3, 2007, the District
Court issued an order setting July 11, 2007 as the deadline for posting a bond. No bond was posted. The District Court

has not ruled on the parties cross-appeals of the Remand Order.

Delaware Proceedings

On December 18, 2006, the Contrarian Group filed an action in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, New
Castle County, Contrarian Funds, LLC, et al v. WestPoint International Inc., et al., seeking, among other things, a
temporary order restraining WPI from proceeding with a stockholders' meeting scheduled for December 20, 2006,

which was to consider corporate actions relating to a proposed offering of $200 million of preferred stock of WPI and

related relief. The application was denied by order dated December 19, 2006. The stockholders' meeting took place on

December 20, 2006, the preferred stock offering was approved, and other corporate actions were taken. We purchased

all of the $200.0 million of preferred stock.
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Note 19 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

On January 19, 2007, Beal Bank and the Contrarian Group filed an Amended Complaint, captioned Beal Bank, S.S.B.,
et al. v. WestPoint International, Inc., et al. Plaintiffs seek, among other relief, an order declaring that WPI is obliged
to register the common stock (other than the 5,250,000 shares purchased by us) in Beal Bank's name, an order
declaring certain corporate governance changes implemented in 2005 invalid, an order declaring invalid the actions
taken at the December 20, 2006 stockholders' meeting and an order to unwind the issuance of the preferred stock, or,
alternatively, directing that such preferred stock be held in trust. On July 18, 2007, Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave
to file a Second Amended Complaint asserting additional causes of action. The parties are in the initial stages of
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discovery. The Delaware action remains pending and we intend to vigorously defend against such claims.

We currently own approximately 67.7% of the outstanding shares of common stock and 100% of the preferred stock
of WPL. As a result of the District Court s November, 2005 order in the Bankruptcy case, the proceedings on remand,
and the proceedings in the Delaware action, our percentage of the outstanding shares of common stock of WPI could
be reduced to less than 50% and perhaps substantially less and our ownership of the preferred stock of WPI could also
be affected. If we were to lose control of WPI, it could adversely affect the business and prospects of WPI and the
value of our investment in it. In addition, we consolidated the balance sheet of WPI as of June 30, 2007 and WPI s
results of operations for the period from the date of acquisition through June 30, 2007. If we were to own less than
50% of the outstanding common stock or the challenge to our preferred stock ownership is successful, we would have
to evaluate whether we should consolidate WPI and if so our financial statements could be materially different than as
presented as of June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the periods then
ended.

We intend to vigorously defend against all claims asserted in these actions and believe that we have valid defenses.

However, we cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings or the ultimate impact on our investment in WPI or the
business prospects of WPL.

Note 20 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table sets forth our financial instruments owned, at fair value, and financial instruments sold, but not
yet purchased, at fair value (in $000s):

June 30, 13)16 cember
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
Financial Instruments Owned:
Trading investments $ 5,534 $ 20,538
Available for sale investments:
Marketable equity and debt securities 250,906 265,411
Other securities 53,033 253,166
Investment in ImClone Systems Incorporated 161,369 122,122
$ 470,842 $ 661,237
Securities sold not yet purchased $ 6,806 $ 25,398
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June 30, 2007

Note 20 Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

The following table sets forth our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value as of June 30,
2007 by level within the fair value hierarchy. As required by SFAS 157, financial assets and liabilities are classified in
their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

June 30, 2007

Level 1®
Assets
Trading investments $ 5,534
Available for sale investments:
Marketable equity and debt securities 250,906
Other securities 53,033
Investment in ImClone Systems Incorporated 161,369
$ 470,842
Liabilities
Securities sold not yet purchased $ 6,806
6))] Based on quoted prices in active markets of the securities.

Note 21 Subsequent Events

Declaration of Distribution on Depositary Units

On August 3, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a payment of a quarterly distribution of $0.15 per unit on our
depositary units payable in the third quarter of fiscal 2007. The distribution will be paid on September 7, 2007 to
depositary unitholders of record at the close of business on August 27, 2007. Under the terms of the indenture dated
April 5, 2007 governing our variable rate senior convertible notes due 2013, we will also be making a $0.05
distribution to holders of these notes in accordance with the formula set forth in the indenture.

Name Changes

Each of AREP, AREH and APl is in the process of effecting a name change. When effective, AREP, AREH and API
will be known as Icahn Enterprises, L.P., Icahn Enterprises Holdings L.P. and Icahn Enterprises GP Inc., respectively.

Acquisition

On August 8, 2007, we entered into a Contribution and Exchange Agreement (the Contribution Agreement ), among
us, CCI Offshore Corp. ( CCI Offshore ), CCI Onshore Corp. ( CCI Onshore ), Icahn Management LP ( Icahn
Management and, together with CCI Offshore and CCI Onshore, the Contributors ) and Carl C. Icahn, pursuant to
which, as more fully described below, we simultaneously acquired the general partnership interests in the general
partners of the private investment funds (which are referred to herein as the Master Funds ) controlled by Mr. Icahn
and in the management company that provides certain management and administrative services to the Master Funds
and certain funds that invest in the Master Funds (the Feeder Funds ). Mr. Icahn controlled the Contributors.

Note 20 Fair Value of Financial Instruments  (continued) 43
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New Icahn Management and the General Partners (as such terms are defined below) of the Master Funds (collectively,
the Management Entities ) provide investment advisory and certain other management services to the Master Funds
and the Feeder Funds (collectively, the Funds ). The Management Entities do not provide investment advisory or other

management services to any other entities, individuals or accounts, and
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Note 21 Subsequent Events (continued)

interests in the Funds are offered only to certain sophisticated and accredited investors on the basis of exemptions
from the registration requirements of the federal securities laws and are not publicly available. The Management
Entities generate income from amounts earned pursuant to contractual arrangements with the Funds. Such amounts
typically include an annual management fee of 2.5% of assets under management and performance-based, or
incentive, allocation of 25% of net realized and unrealized gains earned by the Funds subject to a high water mark ,
although such amounts have been (and may in the future be) modified or waived in certain circumstances. The
Management Entities and their affiliates may also earn income through their principal investments in the Funds.

As of June 30, 2007, the Management Entities had approximately $7 billion of committed funds (including $1.8
billion from Mr. Icahn and affiliated entities on which no management fees or incentive allocations are applicable).
For the 12-months ended June 30, 2007, there was an average of approximately $3.5 billion in third-party fee paying
assets under management, which generated approximately $80 million of management fees and approximately $240
million in incentive allocations (a portion of which is accrued but not earned until the end of the year) for a total of
approximately $320 million in fees. Today, there is approximately $5 billion of third-party fee paying assets under
management. Mr. Icahn formed the Management Entities in November 2004 when certain of the Funds commenced
investment operations with approximately $1 billion under management, of which $300 million was provided by Mr.
Icahn and his affiliated entities. The investment strategy employed by the Management Entities for the Funds is set
and led by Mr. Icahn. The Funds pursue a value-oriented activist investment philosophy. The Funds invest across a
variety of industries and types of securities, including long and short equities, long and short bonds, bank debt and
other corporate obligations, risk arbitrage and capital structure arbitrage and other special situations. The Funds invest
a material portion of their capital in publicly traded equity and debt securities of companies that the Management
Entities believe to be undervalued by the marketplace. The Funds sometimes take significant positions in the
companies in which they invest.

We presently intend to purchase approximately $700 million of limited partnership interests in the Funds on which no
management fees or incentive allocations would be applicable.
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As consideration for the contribution to us of the Partnership Interests (as defined below), we delivered to the
Contributors 8,632,679 AREP Units at the closing, representing $810 million of AREP Units based on the
volume-weighted average price of the AREP Units on the NYSE for the 20-trading-day period ending on August 7,
2008 (the day before the closing). In addition, we have agreed to make certain contingent earn-out payments to the
Contributors over a five-year period payable in additional AREP Units based on our after-tax earnings from the Fund
management business we acquired, which includes both management fees and performance-based (incentive)
allocations paid by the Funds to the Management Entities. The earn-out payments will be calculated as set forth in the
Contribution Agreement, with the maximum earn-out payment equaling $120 million in 2007 (if such after tax
earnings exceed $289 million, with after tax earnings for 2007 including the 2.5% annual management fee for only the
fourth quarter of 2007), $165 million for 2008 (if such after tax earnings exceed $540 million), $223 million for 2009
(if such after tax earnings exceed $746 million), $279 million for 2010 (if such after tax earnings exceed $1.004
billion) and $334 million for 2011 (if such after tax earnings exceed $1.327 billion). There is a catch-up after 2011,
based on total after tax earnings in the five-year earn-out period, with a maximum aggregate earn-out (including any
catch-up) of $1.121 billion which is subject to achieving total after tax earnings in such period of at least $3.906
billion.

Simultaneously with the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, we and Mr. Icahn
entered into a non-compete agreement pursuant to which Mr. Icahn agreed, for a period of ten years, not to engage,
directly or indirectly, in any other business that generates at least 25% of its revenue or income from investment

management activities (a Competing Business ). Mr. Icahn also agreed, for a period of ten years, not to solicit on
behalf of a Competing Business any investor in any of the Funds or any employee of any general partner or manager
of any of the Funds.
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We have also entered into an employment agreement (the Icahn Employment Agreement ) with Mr. Icahn pursuant to
which, over a five-year term, Mr. Icahn will serve as our Chairman and as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Icahn Capital Management LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( New Icahn Management ). Mr. Icahn also serves as the
Chief Executive Officer of the General Partners. During the employment term, Mr. Icahn has agreed to devote his
substantial time and efforts to overseeing our strategic and business affairs and the asset management operations of
New Icahn Management, subject in each case to his ability to continue to engage in certain permitted outside activities
relating to his ongoing investment and business endeavors. During his period of employment, and for a period of two
years following a termination of employment upon his resignation (other than for Good Reason, as such term is
defined in the Icahn Employment Agreement), or a termination upon expiration of the employment term (or
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subsequent termination of employment if he remains employed following the expiration of the term), Mr. Icahn will
be subject to non-competition restrictions that will prohibit him from engaging in business activities that generate in
excess of 25% of their revenue or income from investment management activities and additional restrictions that will
prohibit him from soliciting investors in funds under our management or soliciting or hiring investment professionals
or executives of ours or New Icahn Management. In the event Mr. Icahn is terminated during the term by us without
Cause or he resigns for Good Reason (other than in connection with a change in control) the period of
non-competition will be one year following such termination. Mr. Icahn will not be subject to any such
post-termination restrictions if his employment is terminated as a result of his death or disability or the termination by
him for Good Reason or by us without Cause, in each case in connection with a change in control.

During the employment term, we will pay Mr. Icahn an annual base salary of $900,000 and an annual incentive bonus
based on a bonus formula with two components. The first component is based on the annual return on assets under
management by the Management Entities as follows: the amount of this bonus component is determined by applying a
percentage payout rate (ranging from 0.30% to 1.10%, depending on the aggregate annual percentage returns realized
for the year in question) to the annual realized and unrealized net profits (prior to reduction for management fees or
incentive allocations) of managed funds on all fee-paying assets under management, provided that in calculating the
annual return on all fee-paying assets and the appropriate percentage payout rate, the annual profits in any year shall
be reduced to reflect previously incurred losses that have not already been offset against annual returns.

The second component of the annual bonus payable by us is tied to the growth in our annual net income (other than
income or losses resulting from the operations of the Management Entities) ( Covered Net Income ) as compared to a
fixed annual base amount of $400 million (pro-rated for 2007) (the Base Amount ) as follows: no portion of this annual
bonus shall be payable unless Covered Net Income for the bonus year under consideration equals or exceeds the Base
Amount, in which case the annual bonus shall consist of an increasing percentage of the amount by which Covered
Net Income exceeds the Base Amount (ranging generally from 8% to 20%). In determining Covered Net Income,
certain adjustments are provided for, including the exclusion of expenses relating to bonus determination under the
Icahn Employment Agreement and expenses relating to the acquisition described above. Further, in determining this
bonus component, net losses (if any) from the prior calendar years are carried forward and applied to reduce the
payout amount through the application of an adjustment factor, determined as follows: Covered Net Income for the
bonus year in question will be multiplied by a fraction (no less than zero) where (x) the numerator is equal to current
year Covered Net Income minus any carried forward net loss, and (y) the denominator is equal to the current year
Covered Net Income.

Fifty percent of all bonus amounts payable by us and New Icahn Management shall be subject to mandatory deferral
and treated as though invested in the funds and as though subject to a 2% annual management fee (but no incentive
allocation). Such deferred amounts shall be subject to vesting in equal annual installments over a three-year period

commencing from the last day of the year giving rise to the bonus. Amounts
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Note 21 Subsequent Events (continued)

deferred generally are not subject to acceleration and unvested deferred amounts shall be forfeited if Mr. Icahn ceases

to be employed under his employment agreement, provided that all deferred amounts shall vest in full and be payable

in a lump sum payment thereafter if either the employment of Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause, Mr. Icahn
terminates his employment for Good Reason or upon Mr. Icahn s death or disability during the employment term. In
addition, upon Mr. Icahn s completion of service through the end of the employment term, Mr. Icahn will also vest in
full in any mandatory deferrals. Vested deferred amounts (and all deferred returns, earnings and profits thereon) shall

be paid to Mr. Icahn within sixty (60) days following the vesting date. Returns on amounts subject to deferral shall be

subject to management fees charged by New Icahn Management, but not any incentive fees.

In the event that Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause or he terminates his employment for Good Reason, he
shall be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to one year of base salary, the average aggregate annual bonus paid to
him by us during the three most recently completed years (or the average annualized bonus paid to him for any shorter
period during which he has been employed) and a pro rata Annual Bonus for the year of termination. If, within twelve
(12) months following the occurrence of a change in control of us, Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause or he
resigns for Good Reason (which is limited to defined events relating to a material adverse change in his position and
responsibilities, our material breach of the Icahn Employment Agreement or the relocation of his principal place of
work), Mr. Icahn shall be entitled to a payment equal to two times his base salary and two times the Average Bonus
and a pro-rata Annual Bonus for the year of termination. If Mr. Icahn is terminated as a result of his death or
disability, he (or his estate, if applicable) shall receive a lump sum payment equal to the remaining base salary payable
through December 31 of the year of termination, any unpaid bonus relating to prior years and one-half of the pro rata
Annual Bonus for the year of termination (based on actual results through the date of termination annualized for the
year of termination). If Mr. Icahn resigns without Good Reason, he shall be entitled to certain accrued benefits,
one-half of any unpaid bonus relating to prior years and one-half of the pro-rata Annual Bonus (as determined in the
case of death or disability). All such payments shall be conditioned on Mr. Icahn (or his estate, if applicable) signing a
general release in favor of us and our affiliates.

If at any time between the effective date of the Icahn Employment Agreement and the fifth anniversary of such date
Mr. Icahn ceases to serve as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of New Icahn Management and as the individual
primarily responsible for the management of the Funds investment portfolios for any reason, Mr. Icahn (directly or
through his affiliates other than AREP) will be required to maintain investments in one or more of the Funds for a
defined commitment period (the later of the fifth (51) anniversary of the effective date of the Icahn Employment
Agreement or the third anniversary of his cessation of management responsibility for the Funds) an aggregate amount
equal to not less than $1 billion (along with any amounts earned thereon) (the Committed Funds ), except that he shall
not have any obligation regarding the Committed Funds if his employment has been terminated without Cause by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the Board including a majority of the independent directors. During such period of
time, the Committed Funds will be subject to a management fee of 2% and an incentive allocation of 20%. If at any
time during this commitment period the value of the Committed Funds falls below $1 billion, the management fee and
incentive allocation assessed against the Committed Funds will be equal to the fees applicable if the value of the
Committed Funds were $1 billion.

During the employment term, Mr. Icahn shall also be entitled to participate in our benefit programs and receive the
level of perquisites generally made available to our senior executives.
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The Contribution Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and the Icahn Employment Agreement were
approved by the Special Committee of the independent directors of our general partner, and by the full board of
directors. The Special Committee was represented by Debevoise & Plimpton LLP as its independent counsel. In

addition, Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. was retained by the Special Committee as
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Note 21 Subsequent Events (continued)

its financial adviser. The Special Committee also retained Johnson & Associates, Inc. and BDO Seidman, LLP to
advise on the terms of Mr. Icahn s employment agreement.

CCI Offshore is the general partner of Icahn Offshore LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( Offshore GP ), which, in
turn, is the general partner of each of Icahn Partners Master Fund LP, a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership
( Offshore Master Fund I ), Icahn Partners Master Fund II L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership ( Master
Fund IT ), and Icahn Partners Master Fund III L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership ( Master Fund III
and, collectively with Offshore Master Fund I and Master Fund II, the Offshore Master Funds ).

CCI Onshore is the general partner of Icahn Onshore LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( Onshore GP and together
with Offshore GP, the General Partners ), which, in turn, is the general partner of Icahn Partners LP, a Delaware
limited partnership ( Onshore Master Fund and, collectively with the Offshore Master Funds, the Master Funds ).

CCI Offshore contributed to us 100% of CCI Offshore s general partnership interests in Offshore GP (the Offshore
Partnership Interests ) and CCI Onshore contributed to us 100% of CCI Onshore s general partnership interests in

Onshore GP (the Onshore Partnership Interests ). The General Partners capital account with respect to the Offshore
Partnership Interests and the Onshore Partnership Interests at the time of our acquisition aggregated $10 million.

Immediately prior to the execution and delivery of the Contribution Agreement, Icahn Management and New Icahn
Management entered into an agreement pursuant to which Icahn Management contributed substantially all of its assets
and liabilities, other than certain rights in respect of deferred management fees, to New Icahn Management in
exchange for 100% of the general partnership interests in New Icahn Management. Such contribution included the
assignment of the Management Agreements with the Funds. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, Icahn
Management contributed to us 100% of Icahn Management s general partnership interests in New Icahn Management
(the New Icahn Management Partnership Interests and collectively with the Onshore Partnership Interests and the
Offshore Partnership Interests, the Partnership Interests ).
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We and the Funds also entered into an agreement (the Covered Affiliate Agreement ), simultaneously with the closing
of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, pursuant to which we (and certain of our
subsidiaries) agreed, in general, to be bound by certain restrictions on our investments in any assets that the Offshore
GP and the Onshore GP deem suitable for the Funds, other than government and agency bonds, cash equivalents and
investments in non-public companies. We and our subsidiaries will not be restricted from making investments in the
securities of certain companies in which Mr. Icahn or companies he controlled had an interest in as of the date the
initial Funds launched, and companies in which we currently have an interest. We and our subsidiaries, either alone or
acting together with a group, will not be restricted from (i) acquiring all or any portion of the assets of any public
company in or in connection with a negotiated transaction or series of related negotiated transactions or (ii) engaging
in a negotiated merger transaction with a public company and, pursuant thereto, conducting and completing a tender
offer for securities of the company. The terms of the Covered Affiliate Agreement may be amended, modified or
waived with the consent of AREP and each of the Funds, provided, however, that a majority of the members of an
investor committee maintained for certain of the Funds (which includes the three largest investors of certain of the
Funds not affiliated with Mr. Icahn and who wish to serve as members) may (with AREP s consent) amend, modify or
waive any provision of the Covered Affiliate Agreement with respect to any particular transaction or series of related
transactions.

Potential Acquisitions

On February 9, 2007, we, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement and plan of merger, or the

merger agreement, pursuant to which we would acquire Lear Corporation, or Lear, a publicly
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traded company that provides automotive interior systems worldwide, for an aggregate consideration of approximately
$5.2 billion, including the assumption by the surviving entity of certain outstanding indebtedness of Lear and
refinancing of Lear's existing term loan and credit facility. The consummation of the transaction was subject to a
shareholder vote.

On July 16, 2007, at Lear s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the merger did not receive the affirmative vote of
the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Lear s common stock. As a result, the merger agreement
terminated in accordance with its terms. As required by the merger agreement, in connection with the termination,

Lear (i) paid to our subsidiary $12.5 million, (ii) issued to the subsidiary 335,570 shares of Lear s common stock and

(iii) increased from 24% to 27% the share ownership limitation under the limited waiver of Section 203 of the
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Delaware General Corporation Law granted by Lear to us along with affiliates of and funds managed by Carl C.
Icahn. In addition, if (1) Lear stockholders enter into a definitive agreement with respect to an Acquisition Proposal,
as defined in the merger agreement, within 12 months after the termination of the merger agreement and such
transaction is completed and (2) such Acquisition Proposal has received approval, if required by applicable Law (as
defined in the merger agreement), by the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Lear common stock within such 12 month period, Lear will be required to pay to our subsidiary an amount
in cash equal to the Superior Fee, as defined in the merger agreement, less $12.5 million.

In connection with the termination of the merger agreement, the commitment letter, dated as of February 9, 2007, or
the commitment letter, by and among our subsidiary, Bank of America, N.A. and Banc of America Securities LLC,
also terminated pursuant to its terms. The commitment letter provided for certain credit facilities intended to refinance

and replace Lear s existing credit facilities and to fund the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Mr. Icahn previously proposed that we acquire his interest in American Railcar, Inc., or American Railcar, and Philip
Services Corporation, or Philip Services. American Railcar is a publicly traded company that is primarily engaged in
the business of manufacturing covered hoppers and tank railcars. Philip Services is an industrial services company that
provides industrial outsourcing, environmental services and metal services to major industry sectors throughout North
America. A committee of independent directors of the board was formed to consider those proposals. Currently, at Mr.
Icahn's request, only the proposal regarding the potential acquisition of the metal services business of Philip Services
is being considered by the committee. Any acquisition would be subject to, among other things, the negotiation,
execution and closing of a definitive agreement and the receipt of a fairness opinion. We continuously identify,
evaluate and engage in discussions concerning potential investments and acquisitions, including potential investments
in and acquisitions of affiliates of Mr. Icahn. There cannot be any assurance that any potential transactions that we
consider will be completed.

35

TABLE OF CONTENT

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

Management s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is comprised of the following
sections:

1. Overview
2. Results of Operations
Overview
Consolidated Financial Results
Real Estate
Home Fashion
Holding Company
Discontinued Operations
3. Liquidity and Capital Resources
Consolidated Financial Results
Real Estate
Home Fashion
Discontinued Operations
4. Certain Trends and Uncertainties
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Overview

We are a master limited partnership formed in Delaware on February 17, 1987. We are a diversified holding company
owning subsidiaries engaged in the following operating businesses: Real Estate and Home Fashion. As noted, during
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we divested our Oil and Gas operating unit and our Atlantic City gaming properties.
On April 22, 2007, we entered into an agreement to sell our remaining gaming operations. In addition to our Real
Estate and Home Fashion operating units, we discuss the Holding Company. The Holding Company includes the
unconsolidated results of AREH and AREP, and investment activity and expenses associated with the activities of a
holding company.

We own a 99% limited partnership interest in AREH. AREH and its subsidiaries hold our investments and
substantially all of our operations are conducted through AREH and its subsidiaries. API, owns a 1% general
partnership interest in both us and AREH, representing an aggregate 1.99% general partnership interest in us and
AREH. API is owned and controlled by Mr. Carl C. Icahn. As of June 30, 2007, affiliates of Mr. Icahn beneficially
owned approximately 90% of our outstanding depositary units and approximately 86.5% of our outstanding preferred
units.

Our business strategy includes the following:

Enhance Value of Existing Businesses. We continually evaluate our operating businesses with a view to maximizing
their value to us. In each of our businesses, we place senior management with the expertise to run their businesses and
give them operating objectives that they must achieve. We may make additional investments in business segments to
improve the performance of their operations.

Invest Capital to Grow Existing Operations or Add New Operating Platforms. Our management team has extensive
experience in identifying, acquiring and developing undervalued businesses or assets. We may look to make
acquisitions of assets or operations that complement our existing operations. We also may look to add new operating
platforms by acquiring businesses or assets directly or establishing an ownership position through the purchase of debt
or equity securities of troubled entities and may then negotiate for the ownership or effective control of their assets.
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Enhance Returns on Assets. We continually look for opportunities to enhance returns on both liquid and operating
assets. We may seek to unlock value by selling all or a part of a business segment.

Results of Operations

Overview

The key factors affecting our financial results for the three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the three months
ended June 30, 2006 were:

Reduced revenues from WPI of $71.4 million due to its continuing efforts to reduce revenues from less profitable
programs and a weaker retail sales environment, offset in part by reduced WPI operating expenses of $66.7 million;
Reduced revenues from our Real Estate operating unit of $22.7 million, primarily due to the current slow-down in

residential property development;
Increase in net change in realized and unrealized loss on investments of $61.5 million;

Overview 51



Edgar Filing: AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS L P - Form 10-Q

Sale of our position in SandRidge common stock for total cash consideration of $243.2 million; and
Issuance of $600 million of variable rate senior convertible notes in April 2007.
The key factors affecting our financial results for the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the six months
ended June 30, 2006 were:

Reduced revenues from WPI of $104.2 million due to its continuing efforts to reduce revenues from less profitable
programs and a weaker retail sales environment, offset in part by reduced WPI operating expenses of $98.5 million;
Increased interest income of $49.6 million due to increases in Holding Company cash position resulting from the sales
of our Oil and Gas and Atlantic City gaming operations in November 2006, proceeds from additional debt offerings as
discussed below, and proceeds from the sale of SandRidge common stock as discussed below;
Issuance of $500 million of additional 7.125% senior unsecured notes in January 2007,
Issuance of $600 million of variable rate senior convertible notes in April 2007,
Sale of our position in SandRidge common stock for total cash consideration of $243.2 million; and
Settlement of litigation relating to GB Holdings.

Consolidated Financial Results
Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to three months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 decreased by $94.0 million, or 33.0%, as compared to the second
quarter of fiscal 2006. The decrease was due to reduced revenues from WPI of $71.4 million caused by its continuing
efforts to reduce revenues from less profitable programs and a weaker retail sales environment coupled with reduced

Real Estate operating unit revenues of $22.7 million due to the current residential slow-down of real estate
development sales.

Operating loss for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 increased by $18.0 million, or 47.5%, as compared to the second
quarter of fiscal 2006. The increase results primarily from the decrease in the operating income of the Real Estate
operating unit of $13.3 million, principally in the property development segment.

Interest expense for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 increased by $14.4 million, or 68.6%, as compared to the second
quarter of fiscal 2006. The increase includes interest on the $500 million of additional 7.125% senior unsecured notes
issued in January 2007 as well as $600 million of variable senior convertible notes issued in April 2007. Interest
income for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 increased by $29.3 million, or 243.8%, as compared to the second quarter
of fiscal 2006, primarily due to the increase in the Holding Company s cash position resulting from the issuance of
$500 million of additional 7.125% senior unsecured notes in January 2007, issuance of $600 million of variable rate
senior convertible notes in April 2007, as well as
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the proceeds received from the sales of our Oil and Gas and Atlantic City gaming operations in November 2006 and
sale of our SandRidge common stock in April 2007. Other income (expense) for the second quarter of fiscal 2007, net
decreased by $61.5 million, or 137.3%, as compared to the second quarter of fiscal 2006, resulting primarily from
unrealized losses on our investment in ImClone Systems Incorporated as well as decreased gains on securities sold
short. Equity in earnings of affiliate for the second quarter of fiscal 2007, which pertains to our investment in
ImClone, decreased by 8.0 million, or 100%, compared to the second quarter of fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2006, we
accounted for our investment in ImClone under the equity method. As of January 1, 2007 we adopted SFAS 159 and
now account for our investment in ImClone at fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value reflected in Other
income (expense), net.
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Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to six months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues for the first six months of fiscal 2007 decreased by $119.8 million, or 21.8%, as compared to the first six
months of fiscal 2006. The decrease was due to reduced revenues from WPI of $104.2 million caused by its
continuing efforts to reduce revenues from less profitable programs and weaker retail sales environment coupled with
reduced Real Estate operating unit revenues of $15.5 million due to the current residential slow-down of real estate
development sales.

Operating loss for the first six months of fiscal 2007 increased by $14.8 million, or 17.7%, as compared to the first six
months of fiscal 2006. The increase results primarily from the decrease in the operating income of the Real Estate
operating unit of $12.5 million, principally in the property development segment, offset in part by lower Holding

Company general and administrative expenses.

Interest expense for the first six months of fiscal 2007 increased by $21.5 million, or 51.8%, as compared to the first
six months of fiscal 2006. The increase includes interest on the $500 million of additional 7.125% senior unsecured
notes issued in January 2007 as well as $600 million of variable senior convertible notes issued in April 2007. Interest
income increased by $49.6 million, or 218.9%, as compared to the first six months of fiscal 2006, primarily due to the

increase in the Holding Company s cash position resulting from the issuance of $500 million of additional 7.125%
senior unsecured notes, issuance of $600 million of variable rate senior convertible notes in April 2007, as well as the
proceeds received from the sales of our Oil and Gas and Atlantic City gaming operations in November, 2006 and sale
of SandRidge common stock in April 2007. Other income (expense), net remained relatively flat with a slight increase

of $1.9 million, or 2.9% as compared to the first six months of fiscal 2006. Equity in earnings of affiliate for the first
six months fiscal 2007, which pertains to our investment in ImClone, decreased by 8.0 million, or 100%, compared to
the first six months of fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2006, we accounted for our investment in ImClone under the equity
method. As of January 1, 2007 we adopted SFAS 159 and now account for our investment in ImClone at fair value,
with subsequent changes in fair value reflected in Other income (expense), net.
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Real Estate

Our real estate activities comprise three segments: rental real estate, property development and resort activities
associated with property development. The following table summarizes the key unaudited operating data for the three
segments for the periods indicated (in $000s):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended June

June 30, 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues:
Rental real estate:
Interest income on financing leases $ 1,527 $ 1,715 $ 3,105 $ 3,451
Rental income 1,862 1,750 3,757 3,217
Property development 14,735 37,852 32,881 49,236
Resort activities 7,459 6,952 13,518 12,895
Total revenues 25,583 48,269 53,261 68,799
Operating expenses:
Rental real estate 1,444 822 2,908 1,788

Consolidated Financial Results 53



Edgar Filing: AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS L P - Form 10-Q

Property development 15,073 25,976 30,685 35,952
Resort activities 8,063 7,179 14,456 13,349
Total expenses 24,580 33,977 48,049 51,089
Operating income $ 1,003 $ 14,292 $5212 $ 17,710

Rental Real Estate

We market portions of our commercial real estate portfolio for sale. Unaudited sale activity for the periods indicated
was as follows (in $000s, except unit data):

Three Months  Six Months Ended
Ended June 30, June 30,

20072006 2007 2006
Properties sold 4 1 8
Proceeds received $ $7354 $4,359 $ 8,327
Total gain recorded $ $1,308 $3,862 $ 1,559
Gain recorded in discontinued operations $ $1,308 $3,862 $ 1,559

Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues decreased to $3.4 million, or by 2.2%, in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 from $3.5 million in the second
quarter of fiscal 2006. The decrease was primarily attributable to increased financing lease amortization on leases
accounted for as direct financing leases, partially offset by rental of previously vacant space.

Operating expenses increased to $1.4 million, or by 75.7%, in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 from $0.8 million in
the second quarter of fiscal 2006. The increase was primarily due to increased rental and administrative expenses.

Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues increased to $6.9 million, or by 2.9%, for the first six months of fiscal 2007 from $6.7 million for the first
six months of fiscal 2006. The increase was primarily attributable to rental of previously vacant space, partially offset
by increased financing lease amortization on leases accounted for as direct financing leases.

Operating expenses increased to $2.9 million, or by 62.6%, for the first six months of fiscal 2007 from $1.8 million
for the first six months of fiscal 2006. This increase was primarily due to increased rental and administrative expenses
and increased rental property write-downs.
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Property Development

Property development sales activity for the periods indicated was as follows (in 000s, except unit data) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended June
June 30, 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
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Units sold:
New Seabury, Massachusetts 5 20 11 30
Grand Harbor/Oak Harbor, Florida 6 6 11 8
Falling Waters, Florida 6 9 29 9
Westchester, New York 2 6 4 6
Tampa Bay, Florida 1

19 41 56 53
Revenues:
New Seabury, Massachusetts $ 5334 $ 21,352 $ 8917 $ 30,385
Grand Harbor/Oak Harbor, Florida 4,944 4,123 9,293 6,444
Falling Waters, Florida 1,660 2,261 7,127 2,261
Westchester, New York 2,797 10,116 6,040 10,146
Tampa Bay, Florida 1,504

$ 14,735 $ 37,852 $ 32,881 $ 49,236
Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to three months ended June 30, 2006

Due to the current residential real estate slow-down revenue decreased to $14.7 million, or by 61.1%, in the second
quarter of fiscal 2007 from $37.9 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2006.

Operating expenses decreased to $15.1 million, or by 42.2%, in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 from $26 million in
the second quarter of fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, expenses include an asset impairment charge of $1.8 million related
to certain condominium land in our Oak Harbor, Florida subdivision.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold 19 units at an average price of $775,526 with a profit margin of 10.0%.
In the second quarter of fiscal 2006, we sold 41 units at an average price of $923,220 with a profit margin of 31.4%.
In 2006, our New Seabury, Massachusetts property sales, which have a higher profit margin compared to our other
properties, were especially strong due to closings from its grand opening in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005,
or fiscal 2005.

Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to six months ended June 30, 2006

Due to the current residential real estate slowdown revenue decreased to $32.9 million, or by 33.2%, for the first six
months of fiscal 2007 from $49.2 million for the first six months of fiscal 2006.

Operating expenses decreased to $30.7 million, or by 14.7%, for the first six months of fiscal 2007 from $36.0 million
for the first six months of fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, expenses include an asset impairment charge of $1.8 million
related to certain condominium land in our Oak Harbor, Florida subdivision.

For the first six months of fiscal 2007, we sold 56 units at an average price of $587,161 with a profit margin of 12.2%.
For the first six months of fiscal 2006, we sold 53 units at an average price of $928,981 with a profit margin of 27.0%.
In fiscal 2006, our New Seabury, Massachusetts property sales, which have a higher profit margin compared to our
other properties, were especially strong due to closings from its grand opening in fiscal 2005.

Based on current residential sales conditions and the pending completion of our Westchester, New York and Naples,
Florida properties, we expect sales to continue in a down-trend for the balance of fiscal 2007 and into the fiscal year

ending December 31, 2008, or fiscal 2008.
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Resort Activities
Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to three months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues increased to $7.5 million, or by 7.3%, in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, from $7.0 million in the second
quarter of fiscal 2006, primarily attributable to increased club dues.

Operating expenses increased to $8.1 million, or by 12.3%, in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, from $7.2 million in
the second quarter of fiscal 2006, primarily due to increased insurance and beach erosion expenses.

In June 2007, we sold a resort property located in Naples, Florida for $2.1 million. Our cost basis was $0.8 million
and related income taxes were $0.5 million, resulting in a gain of $0.8 million, which is included in discontinued
operations for the three months ended June 30, 2007.

Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to six months ended June 30, 2006

Revenues increased to $13.5 million, or by 4.8%, for the first six months of fiscal 2007 from $12.9 million for the first
six months of fiscal 2006 primarily attributable to increased club dues.

Operating expenses increased to $14.5 million, or by 8.3%, for the first six months of fiscal 2007, from $13.3 million
for the first six months of fiscal 2006, primarily due to increased insurance and beach erosion expenses.

In June 2007, we sold a resort property located in Naples, Florida for $2.1 million. Our cost basis was $0.8 million
and related income taxes were $0.5 million, resulting in a gain of $0.8 million, which is included in discontinued
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

Home Fashion

WPI, through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, WestPoint Home, Inc., is engaged in the business of
manufacturing, sourcing, marketing and distributing bed and bath home fashion products, including among others,
sheets, pillowcases, comforters, blankets, bedspreads, pillows, mattress pads, towels and related products. WPI
recognizes revenue primarily through the sale of home fashion products to a variety of retail and institutional
customers. WPI also operates 30 retail outlet stores that sell home fashion products consisting principally of products
manufactured by WPI. In addition, WPI receives a small portion of its revenues through the licensing of its
trademarks.

Ongoing litigation may result in our ownership of WPI being reduced to less than 50% as described in Part I, Item 3 of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 filed with the SEC on March 6, 2007 and Part II, Item 1 of this
Quarterly Report on Form10-Q.

Overview

For the second quarter of fiscal 2007, gross earnings were affected by efforts to reduce revenue from less profitable
business, a weaker home textile retail environment and lower manufacturing plant utilizations at some of our U.S.
bedding plants scheduled for closure. Factory underutilization charges at the bedding operations are expected to
diminish in the second half of fiscal 2007 in connection with the closure of certain U.S. operations. WPI will continue
to realign its manufacturing operations to optimize its cost structure, pursuing offshore sourcing arrangements that
employ a combination of owned and operated facilities, joint ventures and third-party supply contracts.
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During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, WPI continued to successfully implement its strategic plans to shift
manufacturing capacity from the United States to lower-cost countries. WPI s newly acquired bedding operation in
Bahrain is now producing product as planned, with significantly lower production costs than its U.S. operations.
Additionally, the expansion of WPI s joint venture bath manufacturing operation in Pakistan is proceeding to build its
output volume of finished goods. WPI anticipates improvements in gross earnings through cost of sales reductions in
the second half of fiscal 2007 and into fiscal 2008.
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Results of Operations

Summarized statements of operations for WPI for the periods indicated are as follows (in $000s) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net Sales $165,789  $237,148 $376,393  $ 480,638
Costs of sales 164,114 224,222 370,024 452,582
Gross earnings 1,675 12,926 6,369 28,056
Selling, general and administrative expenses 34,296 40,698 73,693 84,015
Restructuring and impairment charges 20,382 20,567 24,693 30,338
Operating loss $(53,003) $(48,339 ) $(92,017 ) $(86,297 )

Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to three months ended June 30, 2006

The second quarter of fiscal 2007 remained challenging for WPI. Net sales for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 were
$165.8 million, a decline of 30.1% compared to $237.1 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2006. The decline,
which affected all lines of business, was primarily attributable to our continuing efforts to reduce revenues from less
profitable programs and a continued weaker retail sales environment. Bed products net sales for the second quarter of
2007 were $89.5 million, a decrease of $45.3 million from the second quarter of fiscal 2006. Bath products net sales
were $62.9 million, a decrease of $21.5 million from the second quarter of fiscal 2006 and other net sales, consisting
primarily of sales from WPI s retail outlet stores, were $13.4 million, a decrease of $4.5 million from the second
quarter of fiscal 2006.

Total depreciation expense for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 was $4.6 million, of which $3.5 million was included
in cost of sales and $1.1 million was included in selling, general and administrative. Total depreciation expense for the
second quarter of 2006 was $9.5 million, of which $7.7 million was included in cost of sales and $1.8 million was
included in selling, general and administrative. Depreciation expenses were reduced primarily as the result of plant
closures subsequent to the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

Gross earnings for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 were $1.7 million, or 1% of net sales, compared with $12.9
million, or 5.5% of net sales during the second quarter of 2006. Gross earnings during the second quarter of fiscal
2007 were negatively impacted by lower sales across all product lines as the result of a continued weaker retail
environment for home textile products, competitive pricing and higher production costs which include underutilization
of plants scheduled to be closed in the fiscal 2007.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 were $34.3 million as compared to
$40.7 million for the second quarter of fiscal 2006, reflecting WPI s continuing efforts to reduce its selling,
warehousing, shipping and general and administrative expenses since it was acquired by AREP in August 2005. WPI
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reduced its selling, general and administrative staff by 100 people during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and
lowered annual selling, general and administrative costs by an additional $9.1 million on an annualized basis.

Total expenses for the second quarter of fiscal 2007 include $15.4 million related to non-cash fixed asset impairment
charges related to certain plants in the United States, which are planned to be closed in fiscal 2007, and $5.0 million of
restructuring charges (of which $2.5 million related to severance costs and $2.5 million related to continuing costs of
closed plants). Total expenses for the second quarter of 2006 included $18.8 million of non-cash fixed asset
impairment charges related to plant closures in the second quarter of 2006 and $1.7 million of restructuring charges
(of which $0.1 million related to severance costs and $1.6 million related to continuing costs of closed plants).

We continue our restructuring efforts and, accordingly, expect that restructuring charges and operating losses will
continue to be incurred throughout fiscal 2007. If our restructuring efforts are unsuccessful, we may be required to
record additional impairment charges related to the carrying value of long-lived assets.
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Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to six months ended June 30, 2006

The six months ended June 30, 2007 represented a challenging combination of efforts to reduce revenue from less
profitable business, a weaker home textile retail environment, repositioning WPI s manufacturing operations and
realigning selling, general and administrative expenditures. Net sales were $376.4 million, a decrease of 21.7%

compared to $480.6 million for the first six months in fiscal 2006. The decrease, which affected all lines of business,

was primarily attributable to our continuing efforts to reduce revenues from less profitable programs coupled with a
continued weaker retail sales environment. Bed products net sales for the first six months of fiscal 2007 were $214.0
million, a decrease of $56.8 million from $270.8 million. Bath products net sales were $134.2 million, a decrease of
$40.7 million compared to $174.9 million, and other net sales were $28.2 million (consisting primarily of sales from
WPI s retail outlet stores), a decrease of $6.7 million compared to $34.9 million for the first six months of fiscal 2006.

Total depreciation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2007 was $9.4 million, of which $7.2 million was
included in cost of sales and $2.2 million was included in selling, general and administrative. Total depreciation
expense for the six months ended June 30, 2006 was $19.9 million, of which $16.3 million was included in cost of
sales and $3.6 million was included in selling, general and administrative. The reduction in depreciation expenses
were primarily due to plant closures made subsequent to the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

Gross earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007 were $6.4 million, or 1.7% of net sales, compared with $28.1
million, or 5.8% of net sales, during the six months ended June 30, 2006. Gross earnings were affected by competitive
pricing and a continued weaker retail environment, especially in the April to June period, and lower manufacturing
plant utilizations at some of our United States plants. WPI will continue to realign its manufacturing operations to
optimize its cost structure, pursuing offshore sourcing arrangements that employ a combination of owned and
operated facilities, joint ventures and third-party supply contracts.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2007 were $73.7 million as compared
to $84.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006, reflecting WPI s continuing efforts to reduce its selling,
warehousing, shipping and general and administrative expenses since it was acquired by AREP in August 2005. WPI
is continuing to lower its selling, general and administrative expense by consolidating its locations, reducing
headcount and applying more stringent oversight of expense areas where potential savings may be realized, including
headcount reductions taken during the second quarter of fiscal 2007.
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Total expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2007 include $15.4 million of non-cash fixed asset impairment
charges related to certain plants in the United States, which are anticipated to be closed in fiscal 2007, and $9.3
million of restructuring charges (of which $3.8 million related to severance costs and $5.5 million related to
continuing costs of closed plants). Total expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2006 included $26.5 million of
non-cash fixed asset impairment charges related to plant closures in the second quarter of fiscal 2006 and $3.8 million
of restructuring charges (of which $1.3 million related to severance costs and $2.5 million related to continuing costs
of closed plants).

We continue our restructuring efforts and, accordingly, expect that restructuring charges and operating losses will

continue to be incurred throughout fiscal 2007. If our restructuring efforts are unsuccessful, we may be required to
record additional impairment charges related to the carrying value of long-lived assets.

Holding Company
Activities

The Holding Company engages in various activities including investing its available liquidity, investing to earn
returns from increases or decreases in the market price of securities, investing in our subsidiaries growth, raising
capital, and acquiring and divesting businesses.

Holding Company Costs

Holding Company general and administrative expenses are principally related to payroll, legal and other professional
fees and general expenses of the Holding Company.
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Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to three months ended June 30, 2006

Holding Company costs of $3.9 million remained flat in the second quarter of 2007, as compared to the second quarter
of 2006.

Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to six months ended June 30, 2006
Holding Company costs decreased $3.4 million, or 23.0%, to $11.5 million for the first six months of 2007, as
compared to $15.0 million for the first six months of 2006 due largely to the impact of a compensation charge related

to the cancellation of unit options of $6.2 million in fiscal 2006, offset in part by higher legal and professional fees in
fiscal 2007 relating to increased merger and acquisition activities and financing transactions.

Interest Income and Expense
Three months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2006
Interest expense increased 68.6%, to $35.5 million, during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 as compared to $21.1
million in the second quarter of fiscal 2006. This increase is a result of interest incurred on the $500.0 million
additional 7.125% senior notes issued in January 2007 and the $600.0 million of variable rate convertible notes issued

in April 2007.
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Interest income increased 243.3%, to $41.2 million, during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 as compared to $12.0
million in the second quarter of fiscal 2006. This was primarily due to the substantial increase in the Holding
Company s cash position from the sales of our Oil and Gas operations and Atlantic City gaming operations in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and the proceeds from the issuance of additional 7.125% senior notes in January 2007
and variable rate convertible notes in April 2007.

Six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2006

Interest expense increased 51.8%, to $63.0 million, during the first six months of fiscal 2007 as compared to $41.5
million in the first six months of fiscal 2006. This increase is a result of interest incurred on the $500.0 million
additional 7.125% senior notes issued in January 2007 and the $600.0 million of variable rate convertible notes issued
in April 2007.

Interest income increased 218.5% to $72.3 million during the first six months of fiscal 2007 as compared to $22.7
million in the first six months of fiscal 2006. This increase was primarily due to the increase in the Holding Company s
cash position from the sale of our Oil and Gas operations and Atlantic City gaming operations in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2006 and the proceeds from the issuance of additional 7.125% senior notes in January 2007 and variable rate
convertible notes in April 2007.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other Income (Expense), net, is comprised of the following for the periods indicated (in 000s) (unaudited):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Net realized gains on sales of marketable $31.119 $ 22.855 $ 36.296 $ 56,286

securities

Unrea.ll‘lzed (losses) gains on marketable (47.883 ) 4072 24243 19.750
securities

Net realized losses on securities sold short 289 ) (27,044 ) (1,799 ) (32,175 )
glrz)rrfiahzed gains (losses) on securities sold 263 ) 44,276 3.354 18.800
Gain (losses) on sale of assets 606 ) 27 ) 3,006 27 )
Other 1,217 508 2,977 3,517

$(16,705) $44,.840  $68,077 $ 66,151
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We recorded approximately $24.7 million of unrealized losses and $39.2 million of unrealized gains for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, resulting from the change in the market price of ImClone s stock.

Minority Interests

Minority interests totaled $20.6 million and $25.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, primarily as a result of the impact of the minority interests share of the losses incurred by WPL.
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Minority interests totaled $32.2 million and $40.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, primarily as a result of the impact of the minority interests share of the losses incurred by WPL

Discontinued Operations
The Sands and Related Assets

On November 17, 2006, our indirect majority-owned subsidiary, ACE, a New Jersey limited liability company and a
wholly owned subsidiary of Atlantic Coast, which formerly owned The Sands Hotel and Casino in Atlantic City,
AREH, and certain other entities owned by or affiliated with AREH, completed the sale to Pinnacle, of the
outstanding membership interests in ACE and 100% of the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of AREH that
owned parcels of real estate adjacent to The Sands, including 7.7 acres of land known as the Traymore site. We
owned, through subsidiaries, approximately 67.6% of Atlantic Coast, which owns 100% of ACE. The aggregate price
was approximately $274.8 million, of which approximately $200.6 million was paid to Atlantic Coast and
approximately $74.2 million was paid to affiliates of AREH for subsidiaries that owned the Traymore site and the
adjacent properties. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, $51.8 million of the purchase price paid to Atlantic
Coast was deposited into escrow to fund indemnification obligations with regard to the claims of creditors and
stockholders of GB Holdings. On February 22, 2007, we resolved all outstanding litigation involving our interest in
the Atlantic City gaming operations, resulting in a release of all claims against us. After the settlement, our ownership
of Atlantic Coast increased from 67.6% to 96.9% and $50.0 million of the amount placed into escrow was released to
us.

Oil and Gas Operations

On November 21, 2006, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, AREP O & G Holdings LLC, consummated the sale of
all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of NEG Oil & Gas to SandRidge for consideration consisting
of $1.025 billion in cash, 12,842,000 shares of SandRidge s common stock, valued at $18 per share on the date of
closing, and the repayment by SandRidge of $300.0 million of debt of NEG Oil & Gas.

Pursuant to an agreement dated October 25, 2006 among AREH, NEG Oil & Gas and NEGI, NEGI sold its
membership interest in NEG Holding LLC to NEG Oil & Gas for consideration of approximately $261.1 million paid
in cash. Of that amount, $149.6 million was used to repay the principal and accrued interest with respect to the NEGI

10.75% senior notes due 2007, all of which was held by us. On April 4, 2007, we sold our entire position in

SandRidge for cash consideration of approximately $243.2 million.

American Casino & Entertainment Properties LLC

On April 22, 2007, AEP, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of AREP, entered into a Membership Interest Purchase
Agreement with W2007/ACEP Holdings, LL.C, an affiliate of Whitehall Street Real Estate Funds, a series of real
estate investment funds affiliated with Goldman, Sachs & Co., to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership
interests of ACEP, which comprises our gaming operations, for $1.3 billion, plus or minus certain adjustments such as
working capital, more fully described in the agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, AEP is required to
cause ACEP to repay from funds provided by AEP, the principal, interest, prepayment penalty or premium due under
the terms of ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 and ACEP s senior secured credit facility. With this
transaction, we anticipate realizing a gain of approximately $0.57 billion on our investments in ACEP, after income
taxes. ACEP s casino assets are comprised of the Stratosphere Casino Hotel & Tower, the Arizona Charlie s Decatur,
the Arizona Charlie s Boulder and the Aquarius Casino Resort. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Nevada
Gaming Commission and
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the Nevada State Gaming Control Board, as well as customary conditions. The parties expect to close the transaction
by the end of fiscal 2007; however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to consummate the transaction.

Real Estate

Operating properties of our real estate segment are reclassified to held for sale when subject to a contract or letter of
intent. The operations of such properties are classified as discontinued operations. The properties classified as
discontinued operations have changed during fiscal 2007 and, accordingly, certain amounts in the statement of
operations and cash flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 have been reclassified to

conform to the current classification of properties. During the six months ended June 30, 2007, five properties were

reclassified to held for sale.

Results of Discontinued Operations
The financial position and results of these operations are presented as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations
held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets and discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of

operations, respectively, for all periods presented in accordance with SFAS No. 144.

Summarized financial information for discontinued operations for the periods indicated is set forth below (in $000s):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues
Oil and Gas $ $86,606 $ $194,898
Gaming 114,138 134,780 227,026 261,498
Real Estate 1,361 1,849 2,807 3,749
Total revenues $115,499 $223,235 $229,833 $460,145
Operating income from discontinued operations:
Oil and Gas $ $46,528 $ $111,516
Gaming 31,319 15,123 54,546 34,478
Real Estate 1,161 1,280 2,315 2,581
Total operating income 32,480 62,931 56,861 148,575
Interest expense 5,727 ) (10,838) (11,436) (21,237 )
Interest and other income 273 3,179 19,334 5,067
Income tax (expense) 6,037 ) (9,143 ) (15,232) (17,852)
Income from discontinued operations 20,989 46,129 49,527 114,553
Minority interests 41 125 (1,753 ) 179
Gain on sales of discontinued operations, net of 341 1.308 14,026 1,559

income taxes
$21,871 $47,562 $61,800 $116,291

Effective Income Tax Rate

We recorded income tax provisions of $1.89 million and $(0.04) million on pre-tax loss of $21.0 million and $28.3
million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Our effective income tax rate was (9.0)% and
0.14% for the respective periods. We recorded income tax provisions of $1.2 million and $0.01 million on pre-tax loss
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of $66.8 million and pre-tax income of $5.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Our effective tax rate was (1.7)% and 0.2% for the respective periods. The difference between the effective tax rate
and the statutory federal rate of 35% is due principally to income or losses from partnership entities in which taxes are
the responsibility of the partners, as well as changes in valuation allowances.

46

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Seasonality

Sales activity for our real estate developments in Cape Cod and New York typically peak in late winter and early
spring while in Florida our peak selling season is during the winter months. The Home Fashion segment experiences
its peak sales season in the fall.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Consolidated Financial Results

As of June 30, 2007, the Holding Company had a cash and cash equivalents balance of $2.9 billion, short-term
investments of $309.5 million (of which $177.0 million was invested in short-term fixed-income securities) and total
debt of $1.9 billion.

In addition, we also have the ability to draw down on our credit facility. In August 2006, we entered into a credit
agreement with a consortium of banks pursuant to which we will be permitted to borrow up to $150.0 million. As of
June 30, 2007, there were no borrowings under the facility. See Borrowings below for additional information
concerning credit facilities for our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company. In addition to cash and cash equivalents, U.S. government and agency obligations,
marketable equity and debt securities and other short-term investments, our assets consist primarily of investments in
our subsidiaries. The sale of our Oil and Gas operating unit and Atlantic City gaming properties in November 2006
resulted in significant increases in our liquid assets. However, we may make investments in our operating businesses
or make investments in new businesses, which may reduce our liquid assets.

As a holding company, our cash flow and our ability to meet our debt service obligations and make distributions with
respect to depositary units and preferred units will predominantly depend on the cash flow resulting from divestitures,
equity and debt financings, interest income, and the payment of funds to us by our subsidiaries in the form of loans,
dividends and distributions. We may pursue various means to raise cash from our subsidiaries. To date, such means
include payment of dividends from subsidiaries, obtaining loans or other financings based on the asset values of
subsidiaries or selling debt or equity securities of subsidiaries through capital market transactions. To the degree any
distributions and transfers are impaired or prohibited, our ability to make payments on our debt could be limited. The
operating results of our subsidiaries may not be sufficient for them to make distributions to us. In addition, our
subsidiaries are not obligated to make funds available to us, and distributions and intercompany transfers from our
subsidiaries to us may be restricted by applicable law or covenants contained in debt agreements and other agreements
to which our subsidiaries may be subject or enter into in the future.
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Cash Resources

During fiscal 2007 we consummated the following transactions that provided an aggregate of $1.3 billion:

On January 16, 2007, we issued $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of additional 7.125% senior notes due
2013. The additional 7.125% senior notes were issued pursuant to an indenture dated February 7, 2005, between us, as
issuer, and AREF, as co-issuer, AREH, as guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. The additional
7.125% senior notes have a fixed annual interest rate of 7.125%, which will be paid every six months on February 15
and August 15 and will mature on February 15, 2013.
In April 2007, we issued $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of variable senior convertible notes due 2013.
The notes bear interest of LIBOR minus 125 basis points, but no less than 4% nor higher than 5.5%, and are
convertible into depositary units of AREP at a conversion price of $132.595 per share, subject to adjustments in
certain circumstances.
On April 4, 2007, our subsidiaries signed agreements to sell their entire position in the common stock of
SandRidge (formerly Riata Energy, Inc.) to a consortium of investors in a series of private transactions. The
per share selling price was $18, and total cash consideration received at closing was approximately $243.2
million.
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On April 22, 2007, AEP, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of AREP, entered into an agreement to sell all of the

issued and outstanding membership interests of ACEP, which comprises the remainder of AREP s gaming operations,
for $1.3 billion, plus or minus certain adjustments such as working capital, more fully described in the agreement.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, AEP is required to cause ACEP to repay, from funds provided by AEP, the
principal, interest, prepayment penalty or premium due under the terms of ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due

2012 and ACEP s senior secured credit facility. With this transaction, AREP anticipates realizing a gain of

approximately $0.57 billion on its investments in ACEP, after income taxes. ACEP s casino assets are comprised of

the Stratosphere Casino Hotel & Tower, the Arizona Charlie s Decatur, the Arizona Charlie s Boulder and the Aquarius
Casino Resort. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Nevada Gaming Commission and the Nevada State

Gaming Control Board, as well as customary conditions. The parties expect to close the transaction by the end of
fiscal year 2007; however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to consummate the transaction.

Cash Flows

Net cash used in continuing operating activities was $47.1 million for the first six months of fiscal 2007 as compared
to net cash used in continuing operating activities of $47.4 million in the first six months of fiscal 2006. The net cash
used in continuing operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 primarily relates to (a)
operating losses incurred by WPI which are offset in part by noncash credits to income of $32.2 million and $40.8
million in the fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 periods, respectively, attributable to the minority interests share in WPI s
losses; (b) unrealized gains on investments included in income in the fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 periods of $27.8
million and $38.9 million, respectively; and (c) changes in various working capital categories. Our cash and cash
equivalents increased by $1.31 billion at June 30, 2007, from December 31, 2006, primarily due to the net proceeds
from long-term debt of $492.1 million issued in January 2007 and $600.0 million issued in April 2007.

We are continuing to pursue the purchase of assets, including assets that may not generate positive cash flow, may be
difficult to finance or may require additional capital, such as properties for development, non-performing loans,
securities of companies that are undergoing or that may undergo restructuring, and other companies that are in need of
capital. All of these activities require us to maintain a strong capital base and liquidity.
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Long-term debt consists of the following (in $000s):

June 30, December
2007 31, 2006
(Unaudited)
Senior unsecured variable rate convertible notes due 2013  AREP $600,000 $
Senior unsecured 7.125% notes due 2013 AREP 972,731 480,000
Senior unsecured 8.125% notes due 2012 AREP 351,408 351,246
Senior secured 7.85% notes due 2012 ACEP 215,000 215,000
Borrowings under credit facility ACEP 40,000 40,000
Mortgages payable 106,718 109,289
Other 12,003 13,425
Total long-term debt 2,297,860 1,208,960

Less current portion, including debt related to assets held for sale (280,183 ) (281,299 )
$2,017,677 $927,661
Senior Unsecured Variable Rate Convertible Notes Due 2013

In April 2007, we issued an aggregate of $600.0 million of variable rate senior convertible notes due 2013, or the
variable rate notes. The variable rate notes were sold in a private placement pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and issued pursuant to an indenture dated as of April 5, 2007, by and

among us, as issuer, AREF, as co-issuer, and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. AREF, our wholly owned
subsidiary, was formed solely for the purpose of serving as a co-issuer of
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our debt securities in order to facilitate offerings of the debt securities. The variable rate notes bear interest at a rate of
three month LIBOR minus 125 basis points, but no less than 4.0% nor higher than 5.5%, and are convertible into
depositary units of AREP at a conversion price of $132.595 per share, subject to adjustments in certain circumstances.
As of June 30, 2007, the interest rate was 4.1%. In the event that we declare a cash dividend or similar cash
distribution in any calendar quarter with respect to our depositary units in an amount in excess of $0.10 per depositary
unit (as adjusted for splits, reverse splits, and/or stock dividends), the indenture requires that we simultaneously make
such distribution to holders of the variable rate convertible notes in accordance with a formula set forth in the
indenture.

The variable rate convertible notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be
offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements
of the Securities Act. In connection with the sale of the variable rate convertible notes, we and the initial buyers have
entered into a registration rights agreement, pursuant to which we have agreed to file a shelf registration statement on
Form S-3 with respect to resales of depositary units issuable upon conversion of the variable rate convertible notes. A
preliminary registration statement on Form S-3 with respect thereto was filed on June 21, 2007.

Senior Unsecured 7.125% Notes Due 2013

On February 7, 2005, we issued $480.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due
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2013, or the 7.125% notes, priced at 100% of principal amount. The 7.125% notes were issued pursuant to an
indenture dated February 7, 2005 among us, as issuer, AREF as co-issuer, AREH, as guarantor, and Wilmington Trust
Company, as trustee (referred to herein as the 2005 Indenture). Other than AREH, no other subsidiaries guarantee
payment on the notes.

On January 16, 2007, we issued an additional $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% notes, or the
additional 7.125% notes (the 7.125% notes and the additional 7.125% notes being referred to herein as the notes),
priced at 98.4% of par, or at a discount of 1.6%, pursuant to the 2005 Indenture. The notes have a fixed annual interest
rate of 7.125%, which will be paid every six months on February 15 and August 15 and will mature on February 15,
2013. At the time we issued the additional 7.125% notes, we entered into a new registration rights agreement in which
we agreed to permit noteholders to exchange the private notes for new notes which will be registered under the
Securities Act. A preliminary registration statement on Form S-4 with respect thereto was filed on June 21, 2007.

As described below, the indenture governing the 7.125% notes restrict the ability of AREP and AREH, subject to
certain exceptions, to, among other things: incur additional debt; pay dividends or make distributions; repurchase
units; create liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates.

Senior Unsecured 8.125% Notes Due 2012

On May 12, 2004, AREP and AREEF co-issued senior unsecured 8.125% notes due 2012, or the 8.125% notes, in the
aggregate principal amount of $353.0 million. The 8.125% notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated as of
May 12, 2004, among AREP, AREF, AREH, as guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. The 8.125%
notes were priced at 99.266% of principal amount and have a fixed annual interest rate of 8.125%, which will be paid
every six months on June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2004. The 8.125% notes will mature on June
1, 2012. Other than AREH, no other subsidiaries guarantee payment on the notes.

As described below, the indenture governing the 8.125% notes restrict the ability of AREP and AREH, subject to
certain exceptions, to, among other things: incur additional debt; pay dividends or make distributions; repurchase
units; create liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates.

Senior Unsecured Notes Restrictions and Covenants AREP

The indentures governing our senior unsecured notes restrict the payment of cash dividends or distributions, the
purchase of equity interests or the purchase, redemption, defeasance or acquisition of debt subordinated to the senior
unsecured notes. The indentures also restrict the incurrence of debt or the issuance of disqualified stock, as defined,

with certain exceptions, provided that we may incur debt or issue disqualified stock if, immediately after such
incurrence or issuance, the ratio of the aggregate principal amount of all
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outstanding indebtedness of AREP and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis to the tangible net worth of AREP and
its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis would be less than 1.75 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was less than

1.75 to 1.0.

The indentures also restrict the creation of liens, mergers, consolidations and sales of substantially all of our assets,
and transactions with affiliates.
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The indentures governing our senior unsecured notes require that on each quarterly determination date we and the
guarantor maintain a minimum ratio of cash flow to fixed charges, each as defined, of 1.5 to 1.0, for the four
consecutive fiscal quarters most recently completed prior to such quarterly determination date. For the first fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2007, the ratio of cash flow to fixed charges was greater than 1.5 to 1.0.

The indentures also require, on each quarterly determination date, that the ratio of total unencumbered assets, as
defined, to the principal amount of unsecured indebtedness, as defined, be greater than 1.5 to 1.0 as of the last day of
the most recently completed fiscal quarter. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was in excess of 1.5 to 1.0. Based on this

ratio, as of June 30, 2007, we and AREH could have incurred up to approximately $1.2 billion of additional
indebtedness.

AREP Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

On August 21, 2006, we and AREF, as the borrowers, and certain of our subsidiaries, as guarantors, entered into a
credit agreement with Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as administrative agent, and certain other lender parties.
Under the credit agreement, we are permitted to borrow up to $150.0 million, including a $50.0 million sublimit that
may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings under the agreement, which are based on our credit rating, bear interest

at LIBOR plus 1.0% to 2.0%. We pay an unused line fee of 0.25% to 0.5%. As of June 30, 2007, there were no
borrowings under the facility.

Obligations under the credit agreement are guaranteed and secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of certain
of our indirect wholly owned holding company subsidiaries. The credit agreement has a term of four years and all
amounts are due and payable on August 21, 2010. The credit agreement includes covenants that, among other things,
restrict the creation of liens and certain dispositions of property by holding company subsidiaries that are guarantors.
Obligations under the credit agreement are immediately due and payable upon the occurrence of certain events of
default.

Senior Secured 7.85% Notes Due 2012 ACEP

The indenture governing ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 restrict the payment of cash dividends or
distributions by ACEP, the purchase of its equity interests, the purchase, redemption, defeasance or acquisition of debt
subordinated to ACEP s notes and investments as restricted payments. The indenture also prohibits the incurrence of
debt or the issuance of disqualified or preferred stock, as defined, by ACEP, with certain exceptions, provided that
ACEP may incur debt or issue disqualified stock if, immediately after such incurrence or issuance, the ratio of
consolidated cash flow to fixed charges (each as defined) for the most recently ended four full fiscal quarters for
which internal financial statements are available immediately preceding the date on which such additional
indebtedness is incurred or disqualified stock or preferred stock is issued would be at least 2.0 to 1.0, determined on a
pro forma basis giving effect to the debt incurrence or issuance. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was in excess of 2.0 to
1.0. The indenture also restricts the creation of liens, the sale of assets, mergers, consolidations or sales of
substantially all of ACEP s assets, the lease or grant of a license, concession, other agreements to occupy, manage or
use ACEP s assets, the issuance of capital stock of restricted subsidiaries and certain related party transactions. The
indenture governing the ACEP notes allow ACEP and its restricted subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, among other
things, of up to $50.0 million under credit facilities, non-recourse financing of up to $15.0 million to finance the
construction, purchase or lease of personal or real property used in its business, permitted affiliate subordinated
indebtedness (as defined), the issuance of additional 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed 2.0 times net cash proceeds received from equity offerings and permitted affiliate subordinated
debt, and additional indebtedness of up to $10.0 million.
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ACEP Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

Effective May 11, 2006, ACEP, and certain of ACEP s subsidiaries, as guarantors, entered into an amended and
restated credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank N.A., as syndication agent, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as
administrative agent, and certain other lender parties. As of June 30, 2007, the interest rate on the outstanding
borrowings under the credit facility was 6.82% per annum. The credit agreement amends and restates, and is on
substantially the same terms as, a credit agreement entered into as of January 29, 2004. Under the amended and
restated credit agreement, ACEP will be permitted to borrow up to $60.0 million. Obligations under the credit
agreement are secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of ACEP and its subsidiaries. The credit agreement
has a term of four years and all amounts are due and payable on May 10, 2010. As of June 30, 2007, there were $40.0
million of borrowings under the credit agreement. The borrowings were incurred to finance a portion of the purchase
price of the Aquarius.

The credit agreement includes covenants that, among other things, restrict the incurrence of additional indebtedness by

ACEP and its subsidiaries, the issuance of disqualified or preferred stock, as defined, the creation of liens by ACEP or
its subsidiaries, the sale of assets, mergers, consolidations or sales of substantially all of ACEP s assets, the lease or
grant of a license or concession, other agreements to occupy, manage or use ACEP s assets, the issuance of capital

stock of restricted subsidiaries and certain related party transactions. The credit agreement also requires that, as of the

last date of each fiscal quarter, ACEP s ratio of consolidated first lien debt to consolidated cash flow be not more than
1.0 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, such ratio was less than 1.0 to 1.0. As of June 30, 2007, ACEP was in compliance

with each of the covenants.

The restrictions imposed by ACEP s senior secured notes and the credit facility likely will limit our receiving
payments from the operations of our hotel and gaming properties.

As described in Note 3, on April 22, 2007, AEP entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and outstanding
membership interests of ACEP. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, AEP is required to cause ACEP to repay from
funds provided by AEP, the principal, interest, prepayment penalty or premiums due on ACEP s 7.85% senior secured
rates due 2012 and ACEP s senior secured credit facility. Accordingly, these obligations are now classified as current

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Mortgages Payable

Mortgages payable, all of which are non-recourse to us, bear interest at rates between 4.97% and 7.99% and have
maturities between September 1, 2008 and July 1, 2016.

WestPoint Home Secured Revolving Credit Agreement

On June 16, 2006, WestPoint Home, Inc., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of WPI, entered into a $250.0 million
loan and security agreement with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and lender. On September 18, 2006,
The CIT Group/Commercial Services, Inc., General Electric Capital Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC were

added as lenders under this credit agreement. Under the five-year agreement, borrowings are subject to a monthly
borrowing base calculation and include a $75.0 million sub-limit that may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings
under the agreement bear interest, at the election of WestPoint Home, either at the prime rate adjusted by an
applicable margin ranging from minus 0.25% to plus 0.50% or LIBOR adjusted by an applicable margin ranging from
plus 1.25% to 2.00%. WestPoint Home pays an unused line fee of 0.25% to 0.275%. Obligations under the agreement
are secured by WestPoint Home s receivables, inventory and certain machinery and equipment.
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The agreement contains covenants including, among others, restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness,
investments, redemption payments, distributions, acquisition of stock, securities or assets of any other entity and
capital expenditures. However, WestPoint Home is not precluded from effecting any of these transactions if excess
availability, after giving effect to such transaction, meets a minimum threshold.

As of June 30, 2007, there were no borrowings under the agreement, but there were outstanding letters of credit of
approximately $26.8 million, the majority of which relate to trade obligations.

Quarterly Distributions

On August 3, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a payment of a quarterly cash distribution of $0.15 per unit on
our depositary units payable in the third quarter of fiscal 2007. The distribution will be paid on
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September 7, 2007 to depositary unitholders of record at the close of business on August 27, 2007. Under the terms of
the indenture dated April 5, 2007 governing our senior convertible notes due 2013, we will also be making a $0.05
distribution to holders of these notes in accordance with the formula set forth in the indenture.

On May 4, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a $0.05 increase in our quarterly distribution policy and payment of
a quarterly cash distribution of $0.15 per unit on our depositary units in the second quarter of fiscal 2007. The
distribution was paid on June 1, 2007 to depositary unitholders of record at the close of business on May 22, 2007.
Under the terms of the indenture dated April 5, 2007 governing our senior convertible notes due 2013, we paid a $0.05
distribution to holders of these notes in accordance with the formula set forth in the indenture.

The payment of future distributions will be determined by the Board of Directors quarterly. There can be no assurance
as to whether or in what amounts any future distributions might be paid.

Contractual Commitments
As of June 30, 2007 other than the issuance of an additional $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of the
additional 7.125% senior notes due 2013 and $600.0 million of variable rate senior convertible notes due 2013, there
were no other material changes in our contractual obligations or any other long-term liabilities reflected on our

consolidated balance sheet as compared to those reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 6, 2006.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations or other relationships with
unconsolidated entities or others.

Segment Liquidity and Capital Resources

Real Estate

Our real estate operating units generate cash though rentals, leases and asset sales (principally sales of rental and
residential properties) and the operation of resorts. All of these operations generate cash flows from operations.
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Real estate development activities require a significant amount of funds. In fiscal 2007, our development operations
are expected to require cash expenditures of approximately $40 million. We expect that such amounts will be funded
from unit sales and, to the extent such proceeds are insufficient, by AREP from available cash.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, we sold one rental real estate property for $4.4 million, which was
unencumbered by mortgage debt. In addition, we sold a resort property for $2.1 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2006, we sold eight rental real estate properties for $8.3 million, which were
unencumbered by mortgage debt.

Home Fashion

For the first half of fiscal 2007, our Home Fashion segment had a negative cash flow from operations of $56.1 million.
The negative cash flow from operations was principally due to net operating losses and ongoing restructuring efforts
offset in part by a reduction in working capital. As discussed above, WPI continues its restructuring efforts and,
accordingly, expects that restructuring charges and operating losses will continue to be incurred through the end of
fiscal 2007.

At June 30, 2007, WPI had $115.4 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents. There were no borrowings under
the WestPoint Home senior secured revolving credit agreement, but there were outstanding letters of credit of $26.8
million. Based upon the eligibility and reserve calculations within the agreement, WestPoint Home had unused
borrowing availability of approximately $117.8 million at June 30, 2007.

The senior secured revolving credit agreement contains various covenants including, among others, restrictions on
indebtedness, investments, redemption payments, distributions, acquisition of stock, securities
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or assets of any other entity and capital expenditures. However, WestPoint Home is not precluded from effecting any
of these, if excess availability, as defined, after giving effect to any such debt issuance, investment, redemption,
distribution or other transition or payment restricted by covenant meets a minimum threshold. At June 30, 2007, the
excess availability was greater than the minimum threshold.

Capital expenditures by WPI were $21.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 (including $9.8 million for
further upgrades to the WPI s manufacturing plant in Bahrain and $7.2 million of non-recurring expenditures related to
termination of long-term equipment leases for closed facilities), compared to $3.0 million for the comparable period
last year. Capital expenditures for the remainder of 2007 are expected to total approximately $6.5 million, which is
primarily dependant upon the requirements of WPI s facility in Bahrain. During the six months ended June 30, 2007,
WPI received $13.5 million of net proceeds from sale of assets as compared to $11.7 million in the comparable period
last year.

Through a combination of its existing cash on hand and its borrowing availability under the WestPoint Home senior
secured revolving credit facility, WPI believes that it has adequate capital resources and liquidity to meet its
anticipated requirements to continue its operational restructuring initiatives and for working capital, capital spending
and scheduled payments on the notes payable at least through the next twelve months. However, depending upon the
levels of additional acquisitions and joint venture investment activity, if any, additional financing, if needed, may not

be available to WPI, or if available, the financing may not be on terms favorable to WPI. WPI s estimates of its
reasonably anticipated liquidity needs may not be accurate and new business opportunities or other unforeseen events
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could occur, resulting in the need to raise additional funds from outside sources.

Discontinued Operations

Gaming

ACEP s primary source of cash is from the operation of its properties. At June 30, 2007, ACEP had cash and cash
equivalents of $84.0 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, net cash provided by operating activities
(including the operations of the Aquarius) totaled approximately $43.2 million compared to approximately $36.6
million for the six months ended June 30, 2006. The change in cash provided by operating activities was attributable
to the increase in net income from $16.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 to $23.3 millions for the six
months ended June 30, 2007, reflecting factors discussed above. In addition to cash from operations, cash is available
to ACEDP, if necessary, under ACEP s senior secured revolving credit facility entered into by ACEP, as borrower, and
certain of its subsidiaries, as guarantors. The revolving credit facility allows for borrowings of up to $60.0 million,
including the issuance of letters of credit of up to $10.0 million. Loans made under the revolving credit facility will
mature and commitments under them will terminate in May 2010.

ACEP s primary use of cash during the six months ended June 30, 2007 was for operating expenses, to pay interest on
its 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 and interest under its senior secured revolving credit facility. ACEP s capital
spending was approximately $15.2 million and $16.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. For fiscal 2007, capital spending to date includes $2.7 million for improvements to the Aquarius. ACEP
has estimated its fiscal 2007 capital spending for its existing facilities at approximately $31.1 million, which it
anticipates to include approximately $14.9 million to purchase new and convert existing slot machines and
approximately $7.0 million for remaining Aquarius hotel renovations. The remainder of ACEP s capital spending
estimate for fiscal 2007 will be for upgrades or maintenance to our existing assets.

ACEP believes operating cash flows will be adequate to meet its anticipated requirements for working capital, capital
spending and scheduled interest payments on the notes and under the senior secured revolving credit facility, lease
payments and other indebtedness at least through the next twelve months. However, additional financing, if needed,
may not be available to ACEP, or if available, the financing may not be on terms favorable to it. ACEP s estimates of
its reasonably anticipated liquidity needs may not be accurate and new business opportunities or other unforeseen
events could occur, resulting in the need to raise additional funds from outside sources.

The indenture governing ACEP s 7.85% senior secured notes due 2012 contains certain covenants that restrict payment
of cash dividends, the purchase of equity interests, and the purchase, redemption, defeasance
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or acquisition of debt subordinated to the investments as restricted payments. The indenture also prohibits the
incurrence of debt and issuance of disqualified or preferred stock unless certain ratios as described in the indenture are
maintained. The revolving credit facility contains similar restrictive covenants.

On April 22, 2007, AEP, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement to sell all of the issued and
outstanding membership interests of ACEP, which comprises our remaining gaming operations
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby identified as, Forward-Looking Statements for
purposes of the safe harbor provided by Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the 1934 Act, as
amended by Public Law 104-67.

Forward looking statements regarding management s present plans or expectations involve risks and uncertainties and
changing economic or competitive conditions, as well as the negotiation of agreements with third parties, which could
cause results to differ from present plans or expectations, and such differences could be material. Readers should
consider that such statements speak only as of the date hereof.

Certain Trends and Uncertainties

Our future results could differ materially from our forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences include, but are not limited to those discussed in this document. These statements are subject to
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted. Also, please see Risk
Factors in Part I, Item 1A in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 and in Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our significant market risks are primarily associated with interest
rates and equity prices. Reference is made to Part I, Item 7A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006 that
we filed with the SEC on March 6, 2007 for disclosures relating to interest rates and our equity prices. As of June 30,
2007 there have been no material changes in the market risks in these two categories.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2007, our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company s and our subsidiaries disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to the Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the 34 act. Based upon that evaluation,

our Principal Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
currently effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and
Exchange Commission rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the six months ended June 30,
2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time parties to various legal proceedings arising out of our businesses. We believe however, that
other than the proceedings described in Part I, Item 3 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, filed with
the SEC on March 6, 2007, including that relating to WPI and Lear discussed below, there are no proceedings pending
or threatened against us which, if determined adversely, would have a material adverse effect on our business,

financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

WPI Litigation

Federal Proceedings

In November and December 2005, the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York rendered a decision
in Contrarian Funds Inc. v. WestPoint Stevens, Inc. et al., and issued orders reversing certain provisions of the
Bankruptcy Court order, or the Sale Order, pursuant to which we acquired our ownership of a majority of the common
stock of WPI. WPI acquired substantially all of the assets of WestPoint Stevens, Inc. On April 13, 2006, the
Bankruptcy Court entered a remand order, or the Remand Order, which provides, among other things, that all of the
shares of common stock and rights to acquire shares of common stock of WPI issued to us and the other first lien
lenders or held in escrow pursuant to the Sale Order constituted replacement collateral , other than 5,250,000 shares of
common stock that we acquired for cash. The 5,250,000 shares represent approximately 27% of the 19,498,389 shares
of common stock of WPI now outstanding. According to the Remand Order, we would share pro rata with the other
first lien lenders in proceeds realized from the disposition of the replacement collateral and, to the extent there is
remaining replacement collateral after satisfying first lien lender claims, we would share pro rata with the other second
lien lenders in any further proceeds. We were holders of approximately 39.99% of the outstanding first lien debt and
approximately 51.21% of the outstanding second lien debt. On April 13, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court also entered an
order staying the Remand Order pending appeal. The parties filed cross-appeals of the Remand Order and Contrarian
Funds and certain other first lien lenders, or the Contrarian Group, filed a motion to lift the stay of the Remand Order
pending appeal. Oral argument was held in the District Court on October 19, 2006.

On May 9, 2007, the District Court issued an order conditioning the continuation of the Bankruptcy Court's stay on the
posting of a bond. No bond was posted. On May 22, 2007, WPI, its subsidiary WestPoint Home, Inc., and we filed a
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit requesting, among other relief,
the reinstatement of the Sale Order. The Second Circuit held oral argument on June 26, 2007 and denied the Petition
on June 28, 2007, instructing the District Court to set a new deadline for posting a bond. On July 3, 2007, the District

Court issued an order setting July 11, 2007 as the deadline for posting a bond. No bond was posted and The District
cross-appeals of the Remand Order.

Court has not ruled on the parties

Delaware Proceedings

On December 18, 2006, the Contrarian Group filed an action in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, New

Castle County, Contrarian Funds, LLC, et al v. WestPoint International Inc., et al., seeking, among other things, a
temporary order restraining WPI from proceeding with a stockholders' meeting scheduled for December 20, 2006,
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which was to consider corporate actions relating to a proposed offering of $200 million of preferred stock of WPI and

related relief. The application was denied by order dated December 19, 2006. The stockholders' meeting took place on

December 20, 2006, the preferred stock offering was approved, and other corporate actions were taken. We purchased
all of the $200.0 million of preferred stock.

On January 19, 2007, Beal Bank and the Contrarian Group filed an Amended Complaint, captioned Beal Bank, S.S.B.,
et al. v. WestPoint International, Inc., et al. Plaintiffs seek, among other relief, an order declaring that WPI is obliged
to register the common stock (other than the 5,250,000 shares purchased by us) in Beal Bank's name, an order
declaring certain corporate governance changes implemented in 2005 invalid, an order declaring invalid the actions
taken at the December 20, 2006 stockholders' meeting and an order to unwind the issuance of the preferred stock, or,
alternatively, directing that such preferred stock be held in trust. On
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July 18, 2007, Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to file a Second Amended Complaint asserting additional causes of
action. The parties are in the initial stages of discovery. The Delaware action remains pending and we intend to
vigorously defend against such claims.

We currently own approximately 67.7% of the outstanding shares of common stock and 100% of the preferred stock
of WPI. As a result of the District Court s November, 2005 order in the Bankruptcy case, the proceedings on remand,
and the proceedings in the Delaware action, our percentage of the outstanding shares of common stock of WPI could
be reduced to less than 50% and perhaps substantially less and our ownership of the preferred stock of WPI could also
be affected. If we were to lose control of WPI, it could adversely affect the business and prospects of WPI and the
value of our investment in it. In addition, we consolidated the balance sheet of WPI as of June 30, 2007 and WPI s
results of operations for the period from the date of acquisition through June 30, 2007. If we were to own less than
50% of the outstanding common stock or the challenge to our preferred stock ownership is successful, we would have
to evaluate whether we should consolidate WPI and if so our financial statements could be materially different than as
presented as of June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the periods then
ended.

We intend to vigorously defend against all claims asserted in these actions and believe that we have valid defenses.
However, we cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings or the ultimate impact on our investment in WPI or the
business prospects of WPL

Lear Corporation

On February 9, 2007, we, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement and plan of merger, or the
merger agreement, pursuant to which we would acquire Lear Corporation, or Lear, a publicly traded company that
provides automotive interior systems worldwide, for an aggregate consideration of approximately $5.2 billion,
including the assumption by the surviving entity of certain outstanding indebtedness of Lear and refinancing of Lear's
existing term loan and credit facility. The consummation of the transaction was subject to a shareholder vote.

On July 16, 2007, at Lear s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the merger did not receive the affirmative vote of
the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Lear s common stock. As a result, the merger agreement
terminated in accordance with its terms. As required by the merger agreement, in connection with the termination,
Lear (i) paid to our subsidiary $12.5 million, (ii) issued to the subsidiary 335,570 shares of Lear s common stock and
(iii) increased from 24% to 27% the share ownership limitation under the limited waiver of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law granted by Lear to us and affiliates of and funds managed by Carl C. Icahn. In
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addition, if (1) Lear stockholders enter into a definitive agreement with respect to an Acquisition Proposal, as defined
in the merger agreement, within 12 months after the termination of the merger agreement and such transaction is
completed and (2) such Acquisition Proposal has received approval, if required by applicable Law, by the affirmative
vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Lear common stock within such 12 month
period, Lear will be required to pay to our subsidiary an amount in cash equal to the Superior Fee, as defined in the
merger agreement, less $12.5 million.

In connection with the termination of the Merger Agreement, the commitment letter, dated as of February 9, 2007, or
the Commitment Letter, by and among our subsidiary, Bank of America, N.A. and Banc of America Securities LLC,
also terminated pursuant to its terms. The Commitment Letter provided for certain credit facilities intended to
refinance and replace Lear s existing credit facilities and to fund the transactions contemplated by the merger

agreement.

We were named as a defendant in various actions filed in connection with the merger agreement. Since the merger did
not receive approval from Lear s shareholders and the merger agreement has terminated, the consolidated action filed
in Michigan and the complaint filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, have each
been dismissed. Our motion to dismiss the consolidated action filed in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
is pending. We intend to vigorously defend the Delaware action but we cannot predict the outcome of the motion.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risk factors included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, filed with the SEC on March 6, 2007,
have not materially changed, except as disclosed below.

Our general partner and its control person could exercise their influence over
us to your detriment.

Mr. Icahn, through affiliates, currently owns 100% of API, our general partner, and approximately 86.5% of our
outstanding preferred units and approximately 90% of our depositary units, and, as a result, has the ability to influence
many aspects of our operations and affairs, including the timing and amount of any distribution to unitholders. API

also is the general partner of AREH.

The interests of Mr. Icahn, including his interests in entities in which he and we have invested or may invest in the
future, may differ from your interests as a unitholder and, as such, he may take actions that may not be in your
interest. For example, if we encounter financial difficulties or are unable to pay our debts as they mature, Mr. Icahn s
interests might conflict with your interests.

In addition, if Mr. Icahn were to sell, or otherwise transfer, some or all of his interests in us to an unrelated party or

group, a change of control could be deemed to have occurred under the terms of the indentures governing certain of

our notes which would require us to offer to repurchase all such outstanding notes at 101% of their principal amount

plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the date of repurchase. In the case of the variable
rate senior convertible notes due 2013, or the variable rate senior convertible notes, we also would be obligated to

make a make whole payment in the form of additional depositary units to any holder of convertible notes who

converts such notes following a change of control. However, it is possible that we will not have sufficient funds at the

time of such change of control to make the required repurchase of such notes.
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We have engaged, and in the future may engage, in transactions with our
affiliates.

We have invested and may in the future invest in entities in which Mr. Icahn also invests. We also have purchased and
may in the future purchase entities or investments from him or his affiliates. Although API has never received fees in
connection with our investments, our partnership agreement allows for the payment of these fees. Mr. Icahn may
pursue other business opportunities in industries in which we compete and there is no requirement that any additional
business opportunities be presented to us.

Mr. Icahn previously proposed that we acquire his interest in American Railcar, Inc., or American Railcar, and Philip
Services Corporation, or Philip Services. American Railcar is a publicly traded company that is primarily engaged in
the business of manufacturing covered hoppers and tank railcars. Philip Services is an industrial services company that
provides industrial outsourcing, environmental services and metal services to major industry sectors throughout North
America. A committee of independent directors of the board was formed to consider those proposals. Currently, at Mr.
Icahn s request, only the proposal regarding the potential acquisition of the metal services business of Philip Services
is being considered by the committee. Any acquisition would be subject to, among other things, the negotiation,
execution and closing of a definitive agreement and the receipt of a fairness opinion.

We continuously identify, evaluate and engage in discussions concerning potential investments and acquisitions,
including potential investments in and acquisitions of affiliates of Mr. Icahn. There cannot be any assurance that any
potential transactions that we consider will be completed.

We or our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantially more debt.

We or our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. The terms of our 8.125%
senior notes due 2012, our 7.125% senior notes due 2013 and our variable rate senior convertible notes do not prohibit
us or our subsidiaries from doing so. We and AREH may incur additional indebtedness if we comply with certain

financial tests contained in the indentures that govern these notes. As of June 30, 2007, based on these tests, we and
AREH could have incurred up to approximately $1.2 billion of additional indebtedness. However, our subsidiaries,

other than AREH, are not subject to any of the covenants contained in the indentures with respect to our senior notes,

including the covenant restricting debt incurrence. If new debt is added to our and our subsidiaries current debt levels,

the related risks that we, and they, now face could intensify.
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We have only recently made cash distributions to our unitholders and to
holders of our variable rate convertible notes, and future distributions, if any,
can be affected by numerous factors.

While we made cash distributions with respect to each of the four quarters of 2006 in the amount of $0.10 per
depositary unit and the first quarter of 2007 in the amount of $0.15 per depositary unit and a $0.05 distribution to
holders of our variable rate convertible notes starting in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 as set forth in the indenture
agreement, the payment of future distributions will be determined by the board of directors of our general partner
quarterly, based on a review of a number of factors, including those described below and other factors that it deems
relevant at the time that declaration of a distribution is considered. Our ability to pay distributions will depend on
numerous factors, including the availability of adequate cash flow from operations; the proceeds, if any, from
divestitures; our capital requirements and other obligations; restrictions contained in our financing arrangements; and

We have engaged, and in the future may engage, in transactions with our affiliates. 76
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our issuances of additional equity and debt securities. The availability of cash flow in the future depends as well upon
events and circumstances outside our control, including prevailing economic and industry conditions and financial,
business and similar factors. No assurance can be given that we will be able to make distributions or as to the timing
of any distribution. If distributions are made, there can be no assurance that holders of depositary units may not be
required to recognize taxable income in excess of cash distributions made in respect of the period in which a
distribution is made.

We may become taxable as a corporation.

We believe that we have been and are properly treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. This allows us
to pass through our income and deductions to our partners. However, the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, could
challenge our partnership status and we could fail to qualify as a partnership for past years as well as future years.

Qualification as a partnership involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. For example, a publicly traded partnership is generally taxable as a corporation
unless 90% or more of its gross income is qualifying income, which includes interest, dividends, oil and gas revenues,
real property rents, gains from the sale or other disposition of real property, gain from the sale or other disposition of
capital assets held for the production of interest or dividends, and certain other items. We believe that in all prior years
of our existence at least 90% of our gross income was qualifying income and we intend to structure our business in a
manner such that at least 90% of our gross income will constitute qualifying income this year and in the future.
However, there can be no assurance that such structuring will be effective in all events to avoid the receipt of more
than 10% of non-qualifying income. If less than 90% of our gross income constitutes qualifying income, we may be
subject to corporate tax on our net income, at a federal rate of up to 35% plus possible state taxes. Further, if less than
90% of our gross income constituted qualifying income for past years, we may be subject to corporate level tax plus
interest and possibly penalties. In addition, if we register under the Investment Company Act, it is likely that we
would be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The cost of paying federal and possibly state
income tax, either for past years or going forward, could be a significant liability and would reduce our funds
available to make distributions to holders of units, and to make interest and principal payments on our debt securities
To meet the qualifying income test, we may structure transactions in a manner that is less advantageous than if this
were not a consideration, or we may avoid otherwise economically desirable transactions. Recently proposed
legislation may affect the status of publicly traded partnerships such as AREP. Although as proposed the legislation
would not impact AREP s status as a partnership for tax purposes, it is unclear whether such legislation would be
enacted or, if enacted, what its final form and effect would be.

Our sale of ACEP may not be successfully completed.

On April 22, 2007, AEP entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement with Whitehall Street Real Estate
Funds to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of ACEP, which comprises our gaming
operations. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Nevada Gaming Commission and the Nevada State
Gaming Control Board, as well as customary conditions. The parties expect to close the transaction in approximately
December 2007; however, we cannot assure you that we will be able to consummate the transaction.
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We cannot guarantee that we will be able to recover our investment made in
connection with the acquisition of the Aquarius.

On May 19, 2006, our wholly owned subsidiary, AREP Laughlin Corporation, acquired the Aquarius Casino Resort,

We have only recently made cash distributions to our unitholders and toholders of our variable rate convertible note
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or the Aquarius, from affiliates of Harrah s Operating Company, Inc., or Harrah s, for approximately $113.6 million,
including working capital. Acquisitions generally involve significant risks, including difficulties in the assimilation of
the operations, services and corporate culture of the acquired company.

Pursuant to the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement that AEP has entered into with Whitehall Street Real Estate
Funds to sell the issued and outstanding membership interests of ACEP, we have agreed to make capital expenditures,
including $10.5 million through 2007 to refurbish rooms, upgrade amenities and acquire new gaming equipment for
the Aquarius.

There can be no assurance that this acquisition will be profitable or that we will be able to recover our investments
either upon the sale of ACEP or, if the sale is not consummated, in our future gaming operations.

Pending legal proceedings may result in our ownership of WPl s common
stock being reduced to less than 50%. A legal action in Delaware challenges
the issuance to us of the preferred stock of WPI. Uncertainties arising from
these proceedings may adversely affect WPl s operations and prospects and

the value of our investment in it.

We currently own approximately 67.7% of the outstanding shares of common stock and 100% of the preferred stock
of WPI. As a result of the decision of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, or the District
Court, reversing certain provisions of the Bankruptcy Court order pursuant to which we acquired our ownership of a
majority of the common stock of WPI, the proceedings in the Bankruptcy Court on remand and the proceedings in the
Delaware action, our percentage of the outstanding shares of common stock of WPI could be reduced to less than 50%
and perhaps substantially less and our ownership of the preferred stock of WPI could also be affected.

Recent decisions resulted in the lifting of the stay of the remand order issued by the Bankruptcy Court. In addition,
discovery has begun in the Delaware proceedings and the plaintiffs have filed a motion in Delaware for leave to file a
Second Amended Complaint asserting additional causes of action.

If we were to lose control of WPI, it could adversely affect the business and prospects of WPI and the value of our
investment in it. In addition, we consolidated the balance sheet of WPI as of June 30, 2007 and WPI s results of
operations for the period from the date of acquisition through June 30, 2007. If we were to own less than 50% of the
outstanding common stock or the challenge to our preferred stock ownership is successful, we would have to evaluate
whether we should consolidate WPI and if so our financial statements could be materially different than as presented
as of June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and for the periods then ended. See
Part II, Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Item 5. Other Information

On August 8, 2007, we entered into a Contribution and Exchange Agreement (the Contribution Agreement ), among
us, CCI Offshore Corp. ( CCI Offshore ), CCI Onshore Corp. ( CCI Onshore ), Icahn Management LP ( Icahn
Management and, together with CCI Offshore and CCI Onshore, the Contributors ) and Carl C. Icahn, pursuant to
which, as more fully described below, we simultaneously acquired the general partnership interests in the general
partners of the private investment funds (which are referred to herein as the Master Funds ) controlled by Mr. Icahn
and in the management company that provides certain management and administrative services to the Master Funds
and certain funds that invest in the Master Funds (the Feeder Funds ). Mr. Icahn controlled the Contributors.

New Icahn Management and the General Partners (as such terms are defined below) of the Master Funds (collectively,
the Management Entities ) provide investment advisory and certain other management services to the Master Funds

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to recover our investment made inconnection with the acquisitiof8of the A
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and the Feeder Funds (collectively, the Funds ). The Management Entities do not provide investment advisory or other
management services to any other entities, individuals or accounts, and interests in the Funds are offered only to
certain sophisticated and accredited investors on the basis of exemptions from the registration requirements of the
federal securities laws and are not publicly available. The Management Entities generate income from amounts earned
pursuant to contractual arrangements with the Funds. Such amounts typically include an annual management fee of
2.5% of assets under management and
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performance-based, or incentive, allocation of 25% of net realized and unrealized gains earned by the Funds subject to
a high water mark , although such amounts have been (and may in the future be) modified or waived in certain
circumstances. The Management Entities and their affiliates may also earn income through their principal investments
in the Funds.

As of June 30, 2007, the Management Entities had approximately $7 billion of committed funds (including $1.8
billion from Mr. Icahn and affiliated entities on which no management fees or incentive allocations are applicable).
For the 12-months ended June 30, 2007, there was an average of approximately $3.5 billion in third-party fee paying
assets under management, which generated approximately $80 million of management fees and approximately $240
million in incentive allocations (a portion of which is accrued but not earned until the end of the year) for a total of
approximately $320 million in fees. Today, there is approximately $5 billion of third-party fee paying assets under
management. Mr. Icahn formed the Management Entities in November 2004 when certain of the Funds commenced
investment operations with approximately $1 billion under management, of which $300 million was provided by Mr.
Icahn and his affiliated entities. The investment strategy employed by the Management Entities for the Funds is set
and led by Mr. Icahn. The Funds pursue a value-oriented activist investment philosophy. The Funds invest across a
variety of industries and types of securities, including long and short equities, long and short bonds, bank debt and
other corporate obligations, risk arbitrage and capital structure arbitrage and other special situations. The Funds invest
a material portion of their capital in publicly traded equity and debt securities of companies that the Management
Entities believe to be undervalued by the marketplace. The Funds sometimes take significant positions in the

companies in which they invest.

We presently intend to purchase approximately $700 million of limited partnership interests in the Funds on which no
management fees or incentive allocations would be applicable.

As consideration for the contribution to us of the Partnership Interests (as defined below), we delivered to the
Contributors 8,632,679 AREP Units at the closing, representing $810 million of AREP Units based on the
volume-weighted average price of the AREP Units on the NYSE for the 20-trading-day period ending on August 7,
2008 (the day before the closing). In addition, we have agreed to make certain contingent earn-out payments to the
Contributors over a five-year period payable in additional AREP Units based on our after-tax earnings from the Fund
management business we acquired, which includes both management fees and performance-based (incentive)
allocations paid by the Funds to the Management Entities. The earn-out payments will be calculated as set forth in the
Contribution Agreement, with the maximum earn-out payment equaling $120 million in 2007 (if such after tax
earnings exceed $289 million, with after tax earnings for 2007 including the 2.5% annual management fee for only the
fourth quarter of 2007), $165 million for 2008 (if such after tax earnings exceed $540 million), $223 million for 2009
(if such after tax earnings exceed $746 million), $279 million for 2010 (if such after tax earnings exceed $1.004
billion) and $334 million for 2011 (if such after tax earnings exceed $1.327 billion). There is a catch-up after 2011,
based on total after tax earnings in the five-year earn-out period, with a maximum aggregate earn-out (including any
catch-up) of $1.121 billion which is subject to achieving total after tax earnings in such period of at least $3.906

billion.
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Simultaneously with the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, we and Mr. Icahn
entered into a non-compete agreement pursuant to which Mr. Icahn agreed, for a period of ten years, not to engage,
directly or indirectly, in any other business that generates at least 25% of its revenue or income from investment

management activities (a Competing Business ). Mr. Icahn also agreed, for a period of ten years, not to solicit on
behalf of a Competing Business any investor in any of the Funds or any employee of any general partner or manager
of any of the Funds.

We have also entered into an employment agreement (the Icahn Employment Agreement ) with Mr. Icahn pursuant to
which, over a five-year term, Mr. Icahn will serve as our Chairman and as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of

Icahn Capital Management LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( New Icahn Management ). Mr. Icahn also serves as the

Chief Executive Officer of the General Partners. During the employment term, Mr. Icahn has agreed to devote his

substantial time and efforts to overseeing our strategic and business affairs and the asset management operations of

New Icahn Management, subject in each case to his ability to continue to engage in certain permitted outside activities

relating to his ongoing investment and business endeavors. During his period of employment, and for a period of two

years following a termination
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of employment upon his resignation (other than for Good Reason, as such term is defined in the Icahn Employment
Agreement), or a termination upon expiration of the employment term (or subsequent termination of employment if he
remains employed following the expiration of the term), Mr. Icahn will be subject to non-competition restrictions that

will prohibit him from engaging in business activities that generate in excess of 25% of their revenue or income from

investment management activities and additional restrictions that will prohibit him from soliciting investors in funds

under our management or soliciting or hiring investment professionals or executives of ours or New Icahn
Management. In the event Mr. Icahn is terminated during the term by us without Cause or he resigns for Good Reason
(other than in connection with a change in control) the period of non-competition will be one year following such

termination. Mr. Icahn will not be subject to any such post-termination restrictions if his employment is terminated as

a result of his death or disability or the termination by him for Good Reason or by us without Cause, in each case in

connection with a change in control.

During the employment term, we will pay Mr. Icahn an annual base salary of $900,000 and an annual incentive bonus
based on a bonus formula with two components. The first component is based on the annual return on assets under
management by the Management Entities as follows: the amount of this bonus component is determined by applying a
percentage payout rate (ranging from 0.30% to 1.10%, depending on the aggregate annual percentage returns realized
for the year in question) to the annual realized and unrealized net profits (prior to reduction for management fees or
incentive allocations) of managed funds on all fee-paying assets under management, provided that in calculating the
annual return on all fee-paying assets and the appropriate percentage payout rate, the annual profits in any year shall
be reduced to reflect previously incurred losses that have not already been offset against annual returns.

The second component of the annual bonus payable by us is tied to the growth in our annual net income (other than
income or losses resulting from the operations of the Management Entities) ( Covered Net Income ) as compared to a
fixed annual base amount of $400 million (pro-rated for 2007) (the Base Amount ) as follows: no portion of this annual
bonus shall be payable unless Covered Net Income for the bonus year under consideration equals or exceeds the Base
Amount, in which case the annual bonus shall consist of an increasing percentage of the amount by which Covered
Net Income exceeds the Base Amount (ranging generally from 8% to 20%). In determining Covered Net Income,
certain adjustments are provided for, including the exclusion of expenses relating to bonus determination under the
Icahn Employment Agreement and expenses relating to the acquisition described above. Further, in determining this
bonus component, net losses (if any) from the prior calendar years are carried forward and applied to reduce the
payout amount through the application of an adjustment factor, determined as follows: Covered Net Income for the
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bonus year in question will be multiplied by a fraction (no less than zero) where (x) the numerator is equal to current
year Covered Net Income minus any carried forward net loss, and (y) the denominator is equal to the current year
Covered Net Income.

Fifty percent of all bonus amounts payable by us and New Icahn Management shall be subject to mandatory deferral
and treated as though invested in the funds and as though subject to a 2% annual management fee (but no incentive
allocation). Such deferred amounts shall be subject to vesting in equal annual installments over a three-year period

commencing from the last day of the year giving rise to the bonus. Amounts deferred generally are not subject to
acceleration and unvested deferred amounts shall be forfeited if Mr. Icahn ceases to be employed under his
employment agreement, provided that all deferred amounts shall vest in full and be payable in a lump sum payment
thereafter if either the employment of Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause, Mr. Icahn terminates his
employment for Good Reason or upon Mr. Icahn s death or disability during the employment term. In addition, upon
Mr. Icahn s completion of service through the end of the employment term, Mr. Icahn will also vest in full in any
mandatory deferrals. Vested deferred amounts (and all deferred returns, earnings and profits thereon) shall be paid to
Mr. Icahn within sixty (60) days following the vesting date. Returns on amounts subject to deferral shall be subject to
management fees charged by New Icahn Management, but not any incentive fees.

In the event that Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause or he terminates his employment for Good Reason, he
shall be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to one year of base salary, the average aggregate annual bonus paid to
him by us during the three most recently completed years (or the average annualized bonus paid to him for any shorter
period during which he has been employed) and a pro rata
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Annual Bonus for the year of termination. If, within twelve (12) months following the occurrence of a change in
control of us, Mr. Icahn is terminated by us without Cause or he resigns for Good Reason (which is limited to defined
events relating to a material adverse change in his position and responsibilities, our material breach of the Icahn
Employment Agreement or the relocation of his principal place of work), Mr. Icahn shall be entitled to a payment
equal to two times his base salary and two times the Average Bonus and a pro-rata Annual Bonus for the year of
termination. If Mr. Icahn is terminated as a result of his death or disability, he (or his estate, if applicable) shall receive
a lump sum payment equal to the remaining base salary payable through December 31 of the year of termination, any
unpaid bonus relating to prior years and one-half of the pro rata Annual Bonus for the year of termination (based on
actual results through the date of termination annualized for the year of termination). If Mr. Icahn resigns without
Good Reason, he shall be entitled to certain accrued benefits, one-half of any unpaid bonus relating to prior years and
one-half of the pro-rata Annual Bonus (as determined in the case of death or disability). All such payments shall be
conditioned on Mr. Icahn (or his estate, if applicable) signing a general release in favor of us and our affiliates.

If at any time between the effective date of the Icahn Employment Agreement and the fifth anniversary of such date

Mr. Icahn ceases to serve as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of New Icahn Management and as the individual
investment portfolios for any reason, Mr. Icahn (directly or

primarily responsible for the management of the Funds
through his affiliates other than AREP) will be required to maintain investments in one or more of the Funds for a

defined commitment period (the later of the fifth (5h) anniversary of the effective date of the Icahn Employment
Agreement or the third anniversary of his cessation of management responsibility for the Funds) an aggregate amount
equal to not less than $1 billion (along with any amounts earned thereon) (the Committed Funds ), except that he shall
not have any obligation regarding the Committed Funds if his employment has been terminated without Cause by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the Board including a majority of the independent directors. During such period of
time, the Committed Funds will be subject to a management fee of 2% and an incentive allocation of 20%. If at any
time during this commitment period the value of the Committed Funds falls below $1 billion, the management fee and
incentive allocation assessed against the Committed Funds will be equal to the fees applicable if the value of the
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Committed Funds were $1 billion.

During the employment term, Mr. Icahn shall also be entitled to participate in our benefit programs and receive the
level of perquisites generally made available to our senior executives.

The Contribution Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and the Icahn Employment Agreement were
approved by the Special Committee of the independent directors of our general partner, and by the full board of
directors. The Special Committee was represented by Debevoise & Plimpton LLP as its independent counsel. In

addition, Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. was retained by the Special Committee as its financial adviser. The Special

Committee also retained Johnson & Associates, Inc. and BDO Seidman, LLP to advise on the terms of Mr. Icahn s
employment agreement.

CCI Offshore is the general partner of Icahn Offshore LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( Offshore GP ), which, in
turn, is the general partner of each of Icahn Partners Master Fund LP, a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership
( Offshore Master Fund I ), Icahn Partners Master Fund II L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership ( Master
Fund IT ), and Icahn Partners Master Fund III L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership ( Master Fund III
and, collectively with Offshore Master Fund I and Master Fund II, the Offshore Master Funds ).

CCI Onshore is the general partner of Icahn Onshore LP, a Delaware limited partnership ( Onshore GP and together
with Offshore GP, the General Partners ), which, in turn, is the general partner of Icahn Partners LP, a Delaware
limited partnership ( Onshore Master Fund and, collectively with the Offshore Master Funds, the Master Funds ).

CCI Offshore contributed to us 100% of CCI Offshore s general partnership interests in Offshore GP (the Offshore
Partnership Interests ) and CCI Onshore contributed to us 100% of CCI Onshore s general partnership interests in

Onshore GP (the Onshore Partnership Interests ). The General Partners capital account with respect to the Offshore
Partnership Interests and the Onshore Partnership Interests at the time of our acquisition aggregated $10 million.

62

TABLE OF CONTENT

Immediately prior to the execution and delivery of the Contribution Agreement, Icahn Management and New Icahn
Management entered into an agreement pursuant to which Icahn Management contributed substantially all of its assets
and liabilities, other than certain rights in respect of deferred management fees, to New Icahn Management in
exchange for 100% of the general partnership interests in New Icahn Management. Such contribution included the
assignment of the Management Agreements with the Funds. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, Icahn
Management contributed to us 100% of Icahn Management s general partnership interests in New Icahn Management
(the New Icahn Management Partnership Interests and collectively with the Onshore Partnership Interests and the
Offshore Partnership Interests, the Partnership Interests ).

We and the Funds also entered into an agreement (the Covered Affiliate Agreement ), simultaneously with the closing

of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, pursuant to which we (and certain of our
subsidiaries) agreed, in general, to be bound by certain restrictions on our investments in any assets that the Offshore
GP and the Onshore GP deem suitable for the Funds, other than government and agency bonds, cash equivalents and
investments in non-public companies. We and our subsidiaries will not be restricted from making investments in the
securities of certain companies in which Mr. Icahn or companies he controlled had an interest in as of the date the
initial Funds launched, and companies in which we currently have an interest. We and our subsidiaries, either alone or
acting together with a group, will not be restricted from (i) acquiring all or any portion of the assets of any public
company in or in connection with a negotiated transaction or series of related negotiated transactions or (ii) engaging
in a negotiated merger transaction with a public company and, pursuant thereto, conducting and completing a tender
offer for securities of the company. The terms of the Covered Affiliate Agreement may be amended, modified or
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waived with the consent of AREP and each of the Funds, provided, however, that a majority of the members of an
investor committee maintained for certain of the Funds (which includes the three largest investors of certain of the
Funds not affiliated with Mr. Icahn and who wish to serve as members) may (with AREP s consent) amend, modify or
waive any provision of the Covered Affiliate Agreement with respect to any particular transaction or series of related
transactions.

Item 6. Exhibits

The list of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed as part of this report is set forth in the Exhibit
Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICAN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P.

American Property Investors, Inc.,

By: its general partner
/s/ KEITH MEISTER
By: Keith Meister

Principal Executive Officer
Date: August 9, 2007
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Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2005, by
and among American Real Estate Partners, L.P. and the Holders (as defined therein)
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302(a) of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Oxley Act of 2002.
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